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INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
T Lacs
SrNao. 2011-2012 2012-2013  2013-2014  2014-2015 2015-2016
1 Shareholders’ Funds 10,021 10,831 11,438 11,850 12,115
2 Loan Funds 22 12 1 Nil Nil
3 Debt Equity Ratio 1:0.002 1:0.001 1:0.001 1:0.000 1:0.000
4 Sales & Other Income 10,690 12,011 12,353 12,208 0,028
5 Profits (Subject to 1,415 2,182 1,785 1,233 948
Dapreciation & Tax)
] Net Profit Subject to Tax 968 1,704 1,245 722 473
7 Profit after Tax 707 1,140 ans 622 368
8 Book Valus of Share (T) 106.61 115.22 121.68 126.07 128.88
9 Dividend % 25 30 18 15 9
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INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 44" Annual General Meeting of the Members of INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS
LTD., will be held at GICEA, Nirman Bhavan (Gajjar Hall), Near Law Garden, Ahmedabad- 380 006 on Tuesday, 27"
September, 2016 at 11.00 a.m._to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS :

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31*
March, 2016, the report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

Todeclare dividend on equity shares.

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Shefali V. Mirani (holding DIN: 03107547) who tetires by rotation and being
eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

4. To ratify the appointment of M/s. Mahendra N. Shah & Co., Statutory Auditors of the Company and to fix their
remuneration and to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the fellowing Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to time, Mahsendra N. Shah &
Co., Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad {Firm Regn No. 105775W), be and are here by re-appointed as the
Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting untif the conclusion of
the next Annual Genera! Meeting of the Company on a remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the
Board of Directors of the Cornpany and the Auditors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resoluticn as a “Special
Resolution”.

SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

*RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act 2013, read with Schedule V and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnal) Rules, 2014 {including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), and
turther subject to the approval of Central Govemment, the consent of members be and is hereby accorded to the
re-appointment of Mr. Viren C. Mirani as Managing Director of the Company for the period of 3 years with effect from 1¢
April, 2017, on the folfowing terms and conditions including remuneration:

REMUNERATION:
a) Salary
Monthly salary inthe scale of ¥ 15,00,000 - 2,060,000 - 19,00,000 with effect from 1* April, 2017.

He will be paid remuneration up to T 10,00,000/- as permitted by Schedule V tifl Central Govermnment approval is
received. In case the approval of Central Govemment is received he will be paid remuneration as above or such
other amount as may be approved.

b) Perquisites

Maximumup to ¥ 25,000/- per month which shal include perquisites of Categories ‘A’ and 'B' as below:
CATEGORY ‘A’
i Medical Reimbursement:

Expenses incurred for self and his family. He shall also be entitled to the benefit of Medical Treatment referred to
in praviso to Section 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 or to such medifications as may be made therein from
timetotime.

i Club Fees:
Fees of clubs subject to a maximum of two clubs. This will notinclude admission and life membership fees.
iii.  Personal Accidentinsurance:

Premium not to exceed ¥40,000/- per annum or such amount as may be modified and permitted under Income
Tax Actfromtime to time.
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Iv. MediclaimiInsurance:
Premiurn not to exceed ¥ 15,000/~ per annum or such other modified amount as is exempt under income Tax
Act.

CATEGORY ‘B’

i Provision of a Car and Telephone:
The Company shall pravide Car for use on Company’s business and also for personal purposes and telephone
at the residence of the Managing Director. The Managing Director shall be billed by the Company for personal
long distance calls on telephone at the rate of ¥ 750/- per month and perks for the use of car for personal
purposes shall be evaluated as per income Tax Rules.

I Other Beneflts:
Such other benefits, amenities and facilities as per the Company Rules.

CATEGORY 'C’

i. Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds:
Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation or Annuity Fund shall not be included in computation of the
ceiling on perquisites and shall be payable to the extent these either singly or puttogether are not taxable under
the Income Tax Act.

ii. Gratuity:
As per the rules, nat exceeding half a month's salary for eaach completed year of service, and shall not be
included in the computation of ceiling on perquisites as specified above.

fil. LeaveEncashment:
The Managing Director shail be entitled to fully paid leave as per the Company’s Rules. Encashment of Leave
at the end of the tenure is permitted and shall not be includsd in the computation of the ceiling on pergquisites,
specified above.

¢)  Minimum Remuneration:
In the event of loss or inadequacy of profits, the Managing Director shall be entitled to receive the above
remuneration, perquisites and benefits as Minimum Remuneration.

d} Commission:

In the event of there being sufficient and adequate profits worked out as per the provisions of Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and within the individual limit of 5% of such net profits, the Managing Director could aiso
be paid a remuneration by way of commission on such net profits as may be decided by the Board and agreed
upon by the Managing Director on asceriainment of the net profits at the close of each year over and above the
remuneration referred 1o in the preceding para and that such remuneration shall be deemed to accrue at the
close of the year.

The terms and conditions of the temuneration of the Managing Director, may be varied, altered, increased,
snhanced or widened from time to time by the Remuneration Committee and the Board as it may, in its
discretion, deem it within the above limits and subject to limits laid down in Sections 196,197 and all other
applicable provisions and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and Ruies framed there under and subject to
the requisite approvals from the members, Central Govemment or any other authority, if any, being obtained.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Viren C. Mirani, Managing Director will also be entitled for the
reimbursement of actual entertainment, traveiling, boarding and lodging expenses incutred by him in
connection with the Company's business and such other benefits/famenities and other privileges, as any from
time totime, is available to other Senior Executives of the Company.

RESQOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board Of Directors of the company on recommendation from Nomination &
Remuneration Committee of the Board be and is hereby authorized and empowered to approve annual
increments and to make such improvements in the terms of remuneratian to Mr. Viren C Mirani, as may be
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permissible under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 (as may be amended from time to time} within limits
as may be approved by Central Government or by way of any govemment guidelines or instructions, the
intention being that no further approval of the company would be required so long as remuneration of the
Managing Director is not in excess of maximum permissible limits under relevant laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines orinstructions as maybe promulgated or issued aftertha date of this meeting.

RESOLVED FUHRTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to execute
an agreement with Mr. Viren C. Mirani. as Managing Director, subject to the approval of the Central
Govemment and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as in its absolute discretion, it may consider
necessary, expedient or desirable, and to settle any question or doubt that may arise in relation thereto and the
Board shall have absolute powers to accept any modification in the terms and conditions as may be approved
bythe Central Government while according its approval and as acceptable ta Mr. Viren C. Mirani as Managing
Director and to modify the same in accordance with the approval of the Central Govemment and to give effectto
the foregoing resolution, or as may be otherwise considered by itto bein the best interest of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take alf such steps as
may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

6. In case the Special Resolution for the re-appointment of Mr. Viren C. Mirani as per Agenda Item No. 5 aboveis
not passed, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resofution as an
"Ordinary Resolution”.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act 2013, read with Schedule V and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force), the consent of members be and is hereby accorded to the re-appointment of Mr. Viren C. Mirani
as Managing Director of the Company for the period of 3 years with effect from 1 April, 2017, on a monthly
remuneration upte ¥ 5,00,000/- on the following terms and conditions including remuneration:

REMUNERATION:
a) Salary
Monthly salary of T 4,75,000/- with effact from 1% April, 2017.
b) Perquisites
Maximumupto ¥25,000/- per month which shall include perquisites of Categories ‘A’ and ‘B’ as below :
CATEGORY ‘A’
i Medical Reimbursement:

Expenses incurted for self and his family. He shall also be entitled to the benefit of Medical Treatment referred
toin Proviso to Section 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 orto such modifications as may be made therein from
timeto time.

il. ClubFees:
Fees of ciubs subject to a maximum of two clubs. This wilt notincluds admission and life membarship fees.
ili. Personal Accidentinsurance:

Premium not to exceed ¥ 40,000/- per annum or such amount as may be modified and permitted under Income
Tax Actfromtime to time,

Iv. Medlclaim Insurance:

Premiurn not to exceed T 15,000/~ per annum or such other medified amount as is exempt under Income Tax
Act.

CATEGORY ‘B’
i. Provision of e Car and Telephone:

The Company shall provide Car for use on Company’s business and also for personal purposes and telephone
at the residence of the Managing Director. The Managing Director shalt be billed by the Company for personal
fong distance calls on telephone at the rate of ¥ 750/- per month and perks for the use of car for personal
purposes shall be evaluatedas perIncome Tax Rules.
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Other Benefits:
Such other benefits, amenities and faciiities as per the Company Rules.

CATEGORY ‘C

¢}

d}

Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds:

Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation ot Annuity Fund shall not be included in computation of the
ceiling on perquisites and shall be payabls to the extent these either singly or put together are not taxable under
the Income Tax Act.

Gratuity:

As per the rules, not exceeding half a month’s salary for each completed year of service, and shall not be
included in the computation of ceiling on perquisites as specified above.

Leave Encashment:

The Managing Director shall be entitled to fully paid leave as per the Company's Rules. Encashment of Leave
at the end of the tenure is permitted and shall not be included in the computation of the ceiling on perguisites,
specified above.

Minimum Remuneration :

In the event of (oss or inadequacy of profits, the Managing Director shall be entitled to receive the above
remunetration, perquisites and benefits as Minimum Remuneration.

Commlssion:

In the event of there being sufficient and adequate profits worked out as per the provisions of Section 197 ofthe
Companies Act, 2013 and within the individual limit of 5% of such net profits, the Managing Director couid also
be paid a remuneration by way of commission on such net profits as may be decided by the Board and agreed
upon by the Managing Director on ascertainment of the net profits at the close of each year over and above the
remuneration referred to in the preceding para and that such remuneration shall be deemed to accrue at the
close ofthe year.

The terms and conditions of the remuneration of the Managing Director, may be varied, aftered, increased,
anhanced or widened from time to time by the Remuneration Committee and the Board as it may in its
discretion deem fit within the above limits and subject to fimits laid down in Sections 186, 197 and all other
applicable provisions and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under and subject to
the requisite appravais from the members, Central Government or any other authority, if any, being obtained.

RESQOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Viren C. Mirani, Managing Director will also be entitled for the
reimboursement of actual entertainment, travelling, boarding and lodging expenses incurred by him in
connection with the Company’s business and such cther bensfits/amenities and other privileges, as any from
time to time, is available to other Senior Executives of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board Of Directors of the company on recommendation from Nomination &
Remuneration Committee of the Board be and is heteby authorized and empowered to approve annual
increments and 1o make such improvements in the terms of remuneration 1o Mr. Viren C Mirani, as may be
permissible under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 (as may be amended from time to time}) or by way ot
any government guidelines or instructions, the intention being that no further approval of the company would be
required so long as remuneration of the Managing Director is not in excess of maximum pemmissible under
relevant laws, rules, regulations, guidelines or instructions as may be promulgated ar issued after the date of
this meeting.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to execute
an agreement with Mr. Viren C. Mirani, as Managing Director and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things
as in its absolute discretion, it may consider necessary, expedient or desirable, and to settie any question, or
doubt that may arise in relation thereto and the Board shall have absolute powers to accept any modification in
the terms and conditions as may be approved by the shareholders and as acceptable to Mr. Viren C. Mirani and
to give effect to the foregaing resolution, or as may be otherwise considered by it to be in the best interest of the
Company. '
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is heraby authorized to do aff acts and take all such steps as
may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

7. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an “Ordinary
Resolution”.

ORDINARY RESOQOLUTION:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions ot Sections 196, 197 and ather applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act 2013, read with Schedule V and the Companies (Appointment and Remunaration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force), the consent of members be and is hereby accorded to the appointment of Mrs. Shefali Viren
Mirani as an Executive Director of the Company on a monthly ramuneration up to T 5,00,000/- as permitted in
Partll, Section Il {A) of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, for the period of 3 years with effect from 1* April,
2017, on the following terms and conditions including remuneration;

REMUNERATION:

a)  Salary:
Monthly salary of ¥ 4,75,000/- with effect from 1% April, 2017.

b) Perquisites:
Maximum up to¥ 25,000/- per month which shall include perquisites of Categories ‘A’ and ‘B’ as below:

CATEGORY A’

L Medical Relmbursement:
Expenses incurmed for self and her family. She shall also be entitiad to the benefit of Medical Treatment raferred
toin Proviso to Section 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 or to such modifications as may be made therein from
timetotime.

fIi. ClubFees:
Fees of clubs subject to a maximum of two clubs, This will not include admission and life membership fees,

ili. Personal AccldentInsurance:
Premium not to exceed T 40,000/~ par annum or such amount as may be modifiad and permitted under Income
Tax Act from timeta time.

v. Medicialm Insurance:
Premium not to exceed T15,000/- per annum or such ather modified amount as is exempt under Income Tax
Act.

CATEGORY'B’

I Provision of a Car and Telaphone:
The Company shall provide Car for use on Company’s business and also for personal purposes and telephone
at the residence of the Executive Director. She shall be billed by the Company for personal long distance calis
on telephane at the rate of T 750/- per month and perks for the usa of car for personal purposes shall be
avaluated as per Income Tax Rules.

it Other Benefits:
Such ctherbenefits, amenities and facilities as per the Company Rules.

CATEGORY ‘¢’

Contribution to Provident Fund & Qther Funds:

Contribution to the Provident Fund, Superannuation or Annuity Fund shalinot be included in computation of the

ceiling on perquisites and shall be payable to the extent these either singly or put together are not taxable undar
the Income Tax Act.
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Gratulty:

As per the rules, not excesding half a month's saiary for each completed year of setrvice, and shall not be
included in the computation of ceiling on perquisites as specified above.

Leave Encagshment:

The Executive Director shall be entitled to fully paid leave as per the Company’s Rules. Encashment of Leave
at the end of the tenure is permitted and shall not be included in the computation of the ceiling on perquisites,
specified above.

Minimum Remunaration :

In the avent of loss or inadequacy of profits, the Executive Director shall be entitled to receive the above
remuneration, perquisites and benefits as Minimum Remunsration.

Commisslon:

In the event of there being sufficiant and adequate profits worked out as per the provisions of Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and within the individual limit of 5% of such nst profits, the Exscutive Director could also
be paid a remuneration by way of commission on such net profits as may be decided by the Board and agreed
upon by the Executive Director on ascertainment of the nst profits at the close of each yeer over and above the
ramuneration referred to in the preceding para and that such remuneration shall be deemed to accrue at the
close ofthe ysar.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mrs. Shefali Viren Mirani, Executive Director, will also be entitled for the
reimbursement of actua! entertainment, travelling, boarding and lodging expenses incurred by her in
connaction with the Company’s business and such other benefits/amenities and other privileges, as any from
time totime, is available to other Senlor Executives ofthe Company,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the terms and conditions of the remunaration of the Executive Director, may be
varied, atered, increased, enhanced or widened from time to time by the Remuneration Committes and the
Board as it may, In its discretion, deem fit within the above fimits and subject to limits iaid down in Sections 196,
197 and all other applicable provisions and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there
under.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board Of Directors of the company on recommendation from Nomination &
Aemuneration Committee of the Board he and is hereby authorized and empowsred to approve annual
increments and to make such improvements in the terms of remuneration to Mrs. Shefali Viren Mirani, as may
be permissible under Scheduls V of the Companias Act, 2013 {as may be amended from time to time) or by way
of any government guidelines or instructions, the intention being that no further approval of the company would
be required so long as remuneration of the Executive Diractor is not in excess of maximum pamnissible under
relavant laws, rules, regulations, guidelines or instructions as may be promulgated or issued after the date of
this meeting.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to execute
an agreement with Mrs. Shefali Viren Mirani, as an Executive Director and to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as in its absolute discretion, it may consider necessary, expedient or desirable, and to settle any
question, or doubt that may arise in relation thereto and the Board shall have absolute powers to accept any
modification in the terms and conditions as may be approved by the shareholders and as acceptable to Mrs.

Shefali Viren Mirani and to give effect to the foregoing resolution, or as may be otherwise considered by it to be
in the bast intarest of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as
may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this rasolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

Piace : Ahmedabad Preetal P. Mepani

Data

1 15-07-2016 Company Secretary
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NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING 18 ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR

MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THAT SUCH PROXY
NEED NOTBE AMEMBER.
A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not excesding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more
than ten percent of the total share capitat of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than
ten parcent of the total share capital of the Company carying volting rights may appoint a single person as
proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or shareholder.

The instrument of Proxy, in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the Company, not
less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, in respect of items of Special
Business is annexed hereto.

a. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday, 20"

Septembar, 2016 to Tuesday, 27" September, 2016 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of payment of
Dividend.

4, Dividend, if declared / approved, will be paid to the shareholders holding shares of the Company within 30 days
from the date of declaration interms of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Members are informed that the company’s Equity Shares are compulsorily traded in Demat form for all
invastors, effective from 1" April, 2002. Members may open Depository Account in their names with a
Depository Participant to dematerialize their holdings.

6. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, the dividend remaining unciaimed/
unpald for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to the “Unpaid Dividend Account™ shall be credited
to the Investors Education and Protection Fund {Fund) set up by the Central Govermmaent. Members who have
sofar notclaimad the dividend are requested to make claim with the company immaediately as no claim shall lie
agalinst the Fund orthe Company in respect of individual amount once credited to the said Fund.

The unpaid dividends that are due for transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund are as follows:

%':I:Ig:? Date of Declaration For\tgearA:::g:;ting Due for Transfer date
29" 25-09-2009 2008-2009 31-10-2016

30" 28-09-2010 2009-2010 03-11-2017

ar" 28-09-2011 2010-2011 03-11-2018

™ 28-09-2012 2011-2012 03-11-2019

ki 23-08-2013 2012-2013 28-09-2020

st 05-09-2014 2013-2014 11-10-2021

35* 24-09-2015 2014-2015 29.09-2022

Pursuant to the provisions of Investar Education and Protection Fund (Uploading of information regarding
unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with companies) Rutes, 2012, the Company has uploaded the details of
unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the company as on 24.09.2015 (date of last Annual General
Mesting) on the website of the Company (www.indiagelatine.com), as also on the website of the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.

1
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7.

10.

Members desiring any information on the accounts at the Annual General Meeting are requasted to
write to the Company at least 7 (seven) days in advance, so as 10 enable the Company to keep the
information ready. :

{a) As ameasure of economy, copies of the Annual Report will not be distributed at the Annual Geaneral
Meeting. Members are reguested to bring their copies of the Annual Report atthe meeting.

{b) Members attending the meeting are requested to bring with them the Attendance Slip attachedtothe
Annual Report duly fited in and signed and handover the same at the entrance of the hall.

Mombers are requested to inform immediately of any change in their address to the Company’s Share
Transter Agents.

E-voting:

in compfiance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended up-to-date, and Regulation 44 of the
Securties and Exchange Board of india (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to offer remote e-voting facility to the members to cast their
votes alectronically as an altemative to participation at the 44" Annual General Meating (AGM) to be
held on Tuasday, 27" September, 2016 at GICEA, Nirman Bhavan, (Gajjar Hall), Near Law Garden,
Eliisbridge, Ahmedabad 380006. Piease note that the remote s-voting through electronic means is
optional for sharaholders, The Company is also providing the facility of poll at the meeting by way of
baliot. The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services India Ltd (CDSL) to
provide remote e-voting facilities. The remote e-voting facility is available at the link
www.evotingindia.com

The Company has fixed 20" September, 2016 as the cut-off date for determining voting right of
sharsholders entitled to participate in the e-voting process. In this regard, your demat accountfolio
numbar has been enrolled by the Company for your participation in e-voting on resclutions placed by the -
Company on e-voting system,

The e-voting facility will be available during the following period:

Commencement of remota e-voting End of remote e-voting

Saturday, 24" September, 2016 at 10.01 hrs. Monday, 26" September, 2016 at 17.00 hrs.

During this period, members of the company may cast their vote electronically. The e~voting madule shali be
disabled for voting thersalter. Once the vote(s) ona resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be
allowed to change it subsequently as well as not allowed to vote at the meeting.

The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share
capltal of the company as on 20" September, 2016.

The Instructions for members for remote voting electronically (both for physical shareholders as well
as demat holders) are as under:

{i)
(ii)

Log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com

Click on “Sharesholders”.
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(iiy MNowEnteryourUserlD:
a.  ForCDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b.  ForNSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by B Digits Client 1D,
c. Membars holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the
Company. (6 Digit Alpha-Numeric)
{iv) Nextenterthelmage Verification as displayed and Clickon Login.

(v} I you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an
earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

(vi)  Ifyouare afirsttime user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares In Demat Form and Physlcal Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by income Tex Department (Applicable for
both damat shereholders as well as physical shareholders)

+  Membars wha have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are
requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence
numberin the PAN field.

+ In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0's
before the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. ag. If
your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 100 then enter RA00000100 in

the PAN fiold.
Dividend » ]
Bank Details | Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format} as recorded in your
OR demat account orinthe company records in order to fogin.
Date of *  {fboththe details ar not recorded with the depository or company please enter the memberid /folic
Birth (DOB} nurnber in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (lii).

{(vi) After entering these details appropriately, cfick on "SUBMIT tab.

{will) Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly the Company selection screen.
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wharein
they are required to mandatonty enter their login password in the new password fisld. Kindly note that
this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on
which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.

(i) ForMembaers holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resclutions
comtained in this Notice.

{x}  Clickonthe EVSNfor“INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALSLTD.,” on which you choose to vote.

(xi) On the voling page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option
“YES/NQ" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assentto
the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

{xii} Clickonthe “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

{(xiii) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”, A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OfC, else to change your vole, click on “CANCEL”
and accordingly modify your vote.

(xiv) Once you “CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
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(xviil)

{xix}

INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click hers to print™ eption on the Voting
page.

If a Demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User [D and the image verification
code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prornpted by the system.

Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app m-Voting available for android based maobiles.
The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Stors. Apple and Windows phone users can download
the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively. Please follow the instructions as
prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

Note for Non-individual Shareholders and Custodians :

*  Non-individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to

log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to

hetpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and

password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts finked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on

approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attomey (POA) which they have issued in favour

of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the
same.

in case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Aéked Questions
(“FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting @ cdslindia.com.

In case of members receiving the physical copy:

A
(B)

Please follow all steps from sl. no. (i} to si. no. {xix} above to cast vote.

The voting period begins on Saturday, 24" September, 2016 at 10.01 hrs. and ends on Monday, 26"
September, 2016 at 17.00 hrs. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date {record date) of 20* September, 2016, may cast
their vota electronically. The e-voting module shali be disabled by CDSYL for voting thersafter.

IMPORTANT NOTES:

1.

Any person wha acquires shares of the Company and becomes member of the Company after Friday, 2" of
September, 2016 i.e. the date considered for dispatch of the natice and holding shares as onthe cut-off datei.e.
20" September, 2016, may obtain the login details by sending a request at mt.helpdesk & linkintime.co.in

The Chairman shall, atthe AGM, at the end of discussion on the resotutions on which voting is to be held, allow
voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “remote e-voting” or “Ballot Paper / Polling Paper” tor all
those members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting
taciiity. The tacility for voting at meeting venue shall be decided by the company i.e. “remote e-voting” or “Ballat
Paper/Polling Paper’

The members wha have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall
not be entitled ta cast theirvote again.

Mr. Chirag Shah, Practicing Company Secretary, (Membership No. 5545 and CP No. 3498) partner of Samdani
Shah & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, has been appointed as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the
g-vofing process in a fair and transparent manner. The scrutinizer shall within a period not later than 3(three)
working days from the canclusion of the e-voting period unblock the votes in the presence of atleast 2 {two)
witnesses not in the employment of Company and make a consolidated Scrutinizers Report of the votes cast in
tavour ar against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing who shall countersign the
same. The Chairman or the person authorized by him shall dectare the result of the voting forthwith.
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The results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company. The results deciared along with the
Scrutinizers Report shall be placed cn the Company's website www.indiagelatine.com and on the website of
CDSL. within 2 {(two) working days of the passing of the resolutions at the AGM of the Company. The Company
shall simultanecusly communicate the results to BSE Ltd., Mumbai and ASE Ltd., Ahmedabad, who shall place
the same on their web site

All the shareholders who have not updated thair PAN details with the RTA kindly use the saquence number
provided inthe attendance sfip.

Details of Directors seeking Appointment/Re-appointment
{Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.)

Name Py Mrs. Shefali V. Mirani
Date of Birth 05-12-1871

Date of Appointment 07-07-2014

Qualification B.Com

Expertise in Specific Functional Area Business Administration
Relationship between Directors inter-se None other directors than

Mr. Viren C. Mirani, being husband of
Mrs. Shefali V. Mirani is related.

Directorshipin other Public Ltd. -

Companies (excluding India Gelatine & Chemicals Lid.)
Membership of Committees in other Public Ltd. Companies | -

Shareholding of Directors seeking re- appoeintment 785650 Equity Sharas

Name Mr. Viren C. Mirani

Date of Birth 21-08-1965

Date of Appointment 21-07-2000

Qualification B.Com

Expertise in Specific Functional Area industrialist with rich business experience
in general

Relationship between Directors inter-se None other directors than

Mrs. Shefali V. Mirani, being wife of
Mr. Viren C. Mirani Is related.

Diractorshipin other Public Ltd. -
Companies (excluding India Gelatine & Chemicals Ltd.)

Membership of Committees in other Public L{d. Companies | -

Shareholding of Directors seeking re- appointment 1107846 Equity Shares
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

item No.5 & 6:

ltem No. 5 of the Notice relates to the re-appointmant of Mr. Viren C. Mirani as Managing Director of the Company,
whose presenttenure will expire on 31*March, 2017.

He is re-appointed for a term of 3 years from 1" April, 2017 subject to approval in General Measting. The remuneration
proposed 10 be paid to him under the proposed resolution will be subjecglo the passing of Special Resolution and
approval of Central Government to the extent necessary. It the Special Resolution is passed he will be paid
remuneration as mentioned in the Special Resolution depending upon the fact that approval of Central Govemnment
is received or not.

Resolution mentioned in ltem no. 6 of the Agenda is proposed to be passed in the event Special Resolution
mentioned in ltem No. 5 is not passed.

Memorandum of Interest:
Mr. Viren C. Mirani, is interested in the above resolution to the extent of the remuneration received by him.

Mrs. Shefali V. Mirani is concerned or interested in the above resolution, being wite of Mr. Viren C. Mirani. None of the
other Directors are concemed or intarested in the above resolution.

Information required to be disclosed in terms of Notification No. GSR 36(E} dated 16" January, 2002 issued by
Govemment of India under the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

L General Information:

1) Nature of Industry : Manufacturers of Chemical products
viz. Ossein, Gelatine and DCP

2)  Date of commencement of : 08.02.1975

Commercial Production

3}  Incase of new Companies : NLA.
expected date of commencement

4) Financial Performance

T Lacs
, Exports | Total Sales & | Profit before | Cash Profit]  Net
Year Capital Reserves .
ap! (FOB) | Other Income | Dep. & Tax | aftertax |Profit{Loss)
2013-14| 940.00 10,498.46 | 8,031.40 | 12,353.31 1,785.28 | 1,345.61 805.55
2014-15; 940.00 10,910.16 | 7.986.42 | 12,208.32 1,23295 | 1,133.29 621.89
2015-16 | 940.00 11,174.81 | 6,188.51 9,92B.46 948.12 841.10 366.47

16




INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

5) Export Performance and Net Foreign Exchange

¥lacs
Year Export FOB Value of Qty
Qty. in M.T. Sale
2013-14 2897.70 8,031.40
2014-15 2376.40 7,986.42
2015-16 1706.41 6,188.51

Information about the Appolntee:
1)  Background details:

Mr. Viren C. Mirani is a commerce graduate with 31 years of rich business experience both within and outside
India. He possesses excelient business contacts and is very widely travelled. He is instrumental in soliciting
technical collaboration for setting up Gelatine Plant in 1997. Under his able stewardship his family business of
dealing in cotton and yam earned a very goed reputation and achieved an annual effected turnover in multi
crores. Mr. Viren C. Mirani was the Interim President and then the President of Gelatine Manufacturers
Association of Asia Pacific (‘GMAP™) (based in Austraiia, which has members from Australia, New Zealand,
China, India, Japan, South Korea and Taiwan) for a period of over 4 years {from March 1, 2008 1ill June 30,
2012), and continues to be a director of GMAFP as on date. Further, he is also currently the Vice-Chairman of
Qssein & Gelatine Manufactures Association of India.

2)  Pastremuneration;
Remuneration duting last 3 years:
Tlacs
2013-14 2014-15 2015-16
93.69 164.36 205.61
3} Recognitionorawards:

His untiring sfiorts as Executive Officer for 15 years, as Executive Directorfor 10 years and as Managing
Director for 6 years has contributed substantially for the Company to eam various “Recognitions and
Awards” for “Excellence” in Exports by Trade Bodies and Govemment of India.

The Company’s focus on exports under Mr. Viren C. Mirani’s leadership has also won several awards,
including awards from CAPEXIL (formerly Chemicals and Allied Products Export Promotion Council),
which is sponsored by the Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Govemment of India, for export
achisvement in respect of Ossein and Gelatine for the years 2009-10, 2010-11 and 2011-12 (which is the
last year for which awards in this regard have baen announced by CAPEXIL).

The initial share capital of ¥ 25 lacs reached to ¥ 940 lacs by way of bonus and preferential issue and also
eamed T 11200 lacs as “Reserves” for the shareholders during last 44 years, over and above payment of
dividends.

4}  Job profile/suitablity:

The Managing Director looks after manufacturing, marketing, technical operations and over all
administration of the Company. Because of his sharp business acumen and matured expenience, the
performance of the company has been noteworthy, which also speaks volumes of his ability. He has also
been handling the most onerous job of marketing Ossein and Gelatine and while discharging these
functions quite effectively he has shown signs of great acumanship and stewardship.
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5)

6)

7

Proposed remuneration:

As per approval of members and subject to Central Government approval, he will be paid salary in the
scale of ¥ 15,800,000 - 2,00,000 - 19,00,000 per month and Perks nat to exceed T 25,000/- per month in
the event of inadequacy of profits. In the event of sufficient profits he may also be paid a commission not
exceeding 5% of the netprofits, as may be decided by the Board of Diractors.

Comparative Remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, prafile of the position
and person:

The main product of the industry is sold in the overseas market. Expoert requirements are always quite
stringent. It requires constant “watch and vigil". “Norms and Parameters” of purchase and production are
quite meticulous. Disciplined approach and compliances required for the staff need constant supervision
and continuous accountability. Running this type of industry successfully and earning awards of
*Excellence” year after year proves the perlormance of Managing Director. Remuneration sought to be
paid to him is thus reasonable. Itis also within the normal range of “Managerial Remuneration” paid to the
young generation these days by performance otiented units. Mr, Viren C. Mirani alone has shouldered
the entire responsibility and working for development of business after the demise of the previous
Managing Director Mr. N. R. Mirani. :

Pecuniary Relationship with Company:

The Managing Director's family is also the Promoter of the Company and as such holds substantial
financial interest and continuing commercial affinity with the Company. He, along with his wife, holds
18.93 % Equity Share Capital of the Company. Promoters group as a whole, hold around 67.71 % in the
equity of the Company.

OTHER INFORMATION:

1)

2)

3)

Reasons for Loss/inadequats Profits:

The Company is engaged in the manutacturing of Ossein, Gelatine and DCP. The raw material viz.
Crushed Bones, being of natural origin, is at many times in short supply which adversely affects
company’s praduction. The company faces severe competition from various domestic companies and
therefore focuses on exports market which has inherent foreign exchange risk. The company's raw -
material and finished products both have threats of potential diseases which has impact on finished
goods market of the company's products. There has been substantial increase in manpower and labour
costs. Allthe above adverse factors have resulted in inadequate profits of the company.

Stepstaken and proposed to be taken for improvemnent.

Mr. Viren C. Mirani, the Managing Director has taken all possible steps to stabilize the Gelatine product
by exploring various markets in U.5.A., apan, Europe as well as South East Asia, He has also taken
rigorous steps to promote the sale of Ossein & Gelatine to other foreign buyers. The Company has aiso
undertaken modernization of Raw material grading facilities which is likely to improve yield of finished
products.

Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms:
Productivity and profits are likely to further improve over a period of next 2-3 years. During last 2 years,

the Company has focused on improving yield of finished products which will have tangible benefits in
timesto come.

DISCLOSURES:

1)

The remuneration package of Mr. Viren C. Mirani, Managing Director-
The details of remuneration are given in the Notice.
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2) (i) Elemantofremuneration package
(i) Details of fixed components and performance linked incentive
(i) Service contract, notice period severance feas atc.
(iv} Stockoptiondetails.
The above details are given along with details of his remuneration in the Annexure to the Notice to the
extent they are applicable.
Your directors recommend the resolutions as they consider the same as in the interest of the Company.
The above details may be treated as abstract of terms and conditions of the re-appointment of Managing
Director Mr. Viren C. Mirani as per Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Mr. Viren C. Mirani, the Managing Director of the Company, is deemed as concemed and interested in
the above resolution so far as it relates to his re-appointrent and remuneration payable to him. Mrs.
Shetali V. Mirani Director of the Company, being the wife of Mr. Viren C. Mirani, isinterested.
The Draft Agreements to be entered into with the Managing Director is open for inspection by Members
onany working day betwaen 3.00 p.m. to 5.00 p.m. at the Registerad Office of the Company.
temNo.7:
ftern No. 7 of the Notice relates to the appointment of Mrs. Shefali V. Mirani as an Exacutive Director of
the Company. The terms of appointment of the Executive Director will be efiective for 3 years from 1*
April, 2017 to 31" March, 2020. Mrs. Shefali V. Mirani, shall be paid a remuneration not exceeding
¥ 5,00,000/- p.m. as permitted in Part I! Section Hl {A) of Schedula V ofthe Companies Act, 2013.
Memorandum of Interast:
Mrs. Shefali V. Mirani, is interested in the above resolution to the extent of the remuneration received by
her.
Mr. Viren C. Mirani, Managing Director of the Company, is concemed or interested in the above
resolution, being husband of Mrs. Shefali V. Mirani. None of the other Directors are concemned or
interestedin the above resolution.
information required to be disclosed in terms of Notification No, GSR 36(E) dated 16" January, 2002
issued by Government of India under the provisions of Scheduls V of tha Companies Act, 2013.
{. GENERALINFORMATION:
1) Nature of Industry : Manufacturers of Chemical products viz.
Ossein, Gelatine and DCP
2) Dateof commencement of : 08-02-1975
Commarcial Production
3) lIncase ol newCompanies : N.A,
expected date of commencement
4} Financial Performance
_ T Lacs
) Exports | Totat Sales & | Profit before | Cash Profit Net
Year | Capital Reserves .

P (FOB) | Otherincome | Dep. & Tax | attertax |Profit{Loss)
2013-14| 940.00 10,498.46 | 8,031.40 | 12,353.31 1,785.28 1,345.61 B05.55
2014-15| 940.00 10,910.16 | 7,986.42 | 12,208.32 1,232.95 1,133.29 621.89
2015-16| 940.00 11,174.81 | 6,188.51 9,928.46 948.12 841.10 366.47

19




1

2)

3)

4)
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5) Export Performance and Net Foreign Exchange

Tlacs
Yaar Export FOB Value of Qty
Qty. in M.T, Sale
2013-14 2897.70 B,031.40
201415 2376.40 7.986.42
2015-16 1706.41 6,188.51

INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE:
Background details:

Mrs. Shefali V. Mirani is a commarce graduate with fairly good experience of industry. She was associated with

below mentioned activities:

’ Volunteerad at Sadhana School for Mentally Challenged Adolescent Children - 1994-1996

v IMC exhibitions for embroiderad table linen {1994 and 1995)

. MQDANAMAN - Export Firm - Partner- 1998-2012

. Exporting hand embroidered fabrics to eminent design houses in (taly and designers in Australia and
New York.

Proposed remuneration:

Salary in the scale of ¥ 4,75,000/- per month and Perks not to exceed T 25,000/- par month in the event of
inadequacy of profits. In the event of sufficient profits she may also be paid a commission not exceeding 5% of
the net profits, as may be decided by the Board of Directors.

Comparative Remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profile of the position and .
person:

The main product of the industry is sold in the overseas market. Export requirements are always quite
stringent. It requires constant “watch and vigil®. “Norms and Parameters” of purchase and production are quite
meticulous. Disciplined approach and compliances required for the staff need constant supervision and
continuous accountahbility, it is also within the normal range of “Managerial Remuneration” paid to the young
generation thesa days by parformance oriented units.

Pecuniary Relationship with Company:
An Executive Director's family is also the Promoter of the Company and as such holds substantiai financial
interast and continuing commarcial affinity with the Company. She along with her husband holds 19.93%

Equity Share Capital of the Company. Promoters group as a whole, hold around 67.71% in the equity of the
Company,
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OTHERINFORMATION:

Reasons for Loss/inadequate Profits:

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing of Ossein, Gelatine and DCP. The raw material viz. Crushed
Bones, being of natural origin, is at many times in short supply which adversely affects company's production.
The company faces sevare competition from various domestic companies and therafore focusas on expors
market which has inherent foreign exchange risk. The company's raw material and finished products both
have threats of potential diseases which has impact on finished goods market of the company’s products.
There has been substantial increase in manpower and labour costs. All the above adverse factors have
resulted in inadequate profits of the company.

DISCLGSURES:

1}  Theremuneration package of Mrs. Shefali V. Mirani-
The dstails of remuneration are given in the Notice.

2) () Elementofremuneration package
(il  Details of fixed components and performancs linked incentive
(i} Service contract, notice period severance fees etc.

(iv}] Stockoption details.

The above details are given along with details of her remuneration in the Annexure to the Notice to the extent
they are applicabla.

Your directors recommend the resolution as they consider the same is in the interest of the Company.

The above details may be treated as abstract of terms and conditions of the appointment of Mrs. Shefali V.
Mirani as per Section 162 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Draft Agreement to be entered into with the Director is open for inspection by Members on any working day
betwaen 3.00 p.m. to 5.00 p.m. at the Registered Office ot the Company.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Place : Ahmedabad Preetal P. Mepanl

Date

1 15-07-2016 Company Secretary

21



INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors of your Company have pleasure to present 44" Annual Report with the Audited Statements of Accounts
forthe year ended 31" March, 2016.

2015-16
T lacs
FINANCIAL RESULTS
Total Revenue 9,928.46
Profit for the year after deduciing all the
expenses but before interest, depreciation and taxation (EBIDTA} 948.30
FROM WHICH ARE DEDUCTED
Interest & Financial Charges 0.17
Depreciation 474.64
Provision for Taxation
Current 125.00
Deferred (17.98}
T 58183
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR TO WHICH IS ADDED : 366.47
Surplus Brought Foward 384.61
BALANCE AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 751.08
APPROPRIATION FOR
Proposed Dividend 64.60
Corporate Dividend Tax 17.22
General Reserve 350.00
Surplus Camied to next year's account 299.26
751.08

ECONOMIC SCENARIO & OUTLOOK:

The turmover of the company has decreased by about 18.83% overthe previous year.
Gelatine sales have decreased by 3.85% and whereas Ossein sales have reduced by 64.90% during the year.

The performance of the company is adversely affected due to shertage of raw materials leading to a steep rise in raw
material prices and therehy leading to higher manufacturing costs. increase in manpower and labour costs have also
put pressure on margins and operating profits during the year.

During the year, the company completed to the tune of 90% of modernization of the raw material grading facility. The
final completion of this project would take place during the current financial year 2016-17. This measure being
undertaken by the company is likely ta lead increased yield of the company’s products.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

AReport on Management Discussion and Anatysis is annexed herewith as “Annexurg-A”.
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DIVIDEND:

Your directars recommend dividend @ 9 % i.e. T 0.90/- per share (previous year 15% i.e. ¥ 1.50 per share) on Equity
Shares of T 10/- each of the company for the year ended 31" March, 2016. The proposed dividend (including Corporate
Dividend Tax) will absorb ¥ 101.82 Lacs {previous year¥ 169.71 Lacs)

TAXATION:

The Company has made a provision of ¥ 125.00 lacs towards curmentyear’s Income Tax.

FINANCE:

The Company continues to get requisite assistance and co-operation from its bankers as and when needed.

INSURANCE:

All the properties of the Company including building, plant and machinery and stocks have been adequately covered
under insurance.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:
Industrial refations continued to remain cordial and satisfactary.
PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

During the financial year 2015- 16, your Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Sections 73 & 74
of the CompaniesAct, 2013 read together with the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORTS:

The Corporate Govemnance and Management Discussion & Analysis Report, which form an integral part of this Report,
are set out as separate Annexures, together with the Certificate from the auditors of the Company regarding
compliance with the requirements of Carporate Govemance as stipulated under various regulations of the SEEI
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

DIRECTORS:

Mr. Nayan C, Mirani, a Non executive Director of the Company has resigned w.e.f. 30" June, 2015. The Board has
placed on record its sincere appreciation and gratitude for the valuable and outstanding contribution made by My
Nayan C. Mirani during his association with the Company as a Director.

At the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company Mrs. Shefali V. Mirani, Director of the Company retires by
rotation but being eligible offers herself for reappointment.

DIRECTORS’RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

As stipulated in Section 134 (3){c) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors adhere to the “Directors’ Responsibility
Statement” and confirm asunder :

i)  thatinthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures;

i} thatthe directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
atthe end of the financial year and ofthe profit of the Company for the year;

i) that the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
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accordance with the provisions of this Act for safequarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other imegularities;

iv) thatthedirectors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v) that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financiat controls were adequate and were
aperating effectively;

vi} thatsystems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were adequate and
operating effectively.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’REPORT :
Statutory Auditors :

At the 42™ AGM of your Company, Messrs Mahendra N. Shah & Co., Firm Registration No: 105775W, Chartered
Accountiants, were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of three years form 2014-215 to
2016-2017. Inaccordance with Section 139 ofthe Act, you are requested to ratify the appointment of Statutory Auditors
for \he balance term.

Secretarial Audit:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies {(Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014 your Campany has appointed M/s. Samdani Shah & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries to conduct the Secretariat Audit of your Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is
annexed herewith as “Annexure-E” to this report

POLICY ON DIRECTORS'APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:

{Including criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes, independence of a Director, policy relating to
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees)

{a) Policyon Directors’ Appointment

Policy on Directors' appointment is to foliow the criteria as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013, the Listing
Agreement with Stock Exchanges and good corporate practices. Emphasis is given to persons from diverse fields
or professions.

(b) Policy on Remuneration
Guiding Pelicy on remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees of lhe Company is that—

. Remuneration to unionized workmen is based on the periodical settlement with the workmen union.

«  Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Executives, Managers, Staff and Workmen {non-unionized)
is industry driven in which it is operating and also taking into account the performance leverage and factors such
as to attract and retain quality talent.

. For Directors, itis based on functions and responsibilities shouldered, the shareholders resolutions, provisions of
}he A{;t an‘d It-'f.ules framed therein, circulars and guidelines issued by Central Government and other authoritles

rom time to time.

ANNUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE, ITS COMMITTEES AND (NDIVIDUAL
DIRECTDRS:

The Board of Directors of the Company has initiated and put in place evaluation of its own performance, its committees
and individual directors. The result of lhe evaluation is satisfactory and adequate and meets the requirement of the
company,

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCEBY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

Pursuant to Section 148(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Independent Directors of the Company have made a
declaration confiming the compliance of the conditions of the independence stipulated in the aforesaid section.
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NUMBER OF MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors have met 6 times and Independent Directors once during the year ended 31* March, 2016.The
details of which are mentionad in the Corporate Govemance Report annexed herewith.

DETAILS OF COMMITTEE OF CHRECTORS:

Composition of Audit Committee of Directors, Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors, nurnber of
meetings held of each Committee during the financial year 2015-16 and meetings attended by each member of the
Committes as required under the Companies Act, 2013 ara provided in Corporate Governance Report and forming
partof the report.

The recommendation by the Audit Committee as and when made to Board has been accepted byit.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL :

Your Company has desigrated Mr. Viren C. Mirani, the Managing Director, Mr. Kalidas P. Vagadia, the Chief Financial
Officer and Ms. Preetsl P. Mepani, Company Secretary, as the Key Managerial Personnel.

LOANS, INVESTMENT AND GUARANTEES BY THE COMPANY:

There is no loan given, investment made, guarantee given or security provided by the Company to any entity under
Seaction 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

ANALY SIS OF REMUNERATION:

Pursuant to Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration) Rules, 2014 a disclosure on remuneration
related information of employees, Kaey Managerial Personnel and Directors is annexed herewith as “Annexure-B",

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Retum in Form MGT- 9 in accordance with Section 92(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 201 4, are setout herewith as
“Annexure-F" to this Report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All related party ransactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm'’s length basis and wera in
the ordinary course of business. Form No. AOC-2 is set out herewith as “Annexure- G". There are no materialfly
significant Related Party Transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managenal Personnel or
other designated persons which may have a potantial conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and also the Board for approval. Prior omnibus
approval of the Audit committee is obtained for the transactions which are of foreseen and repetitive nature, The
transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted are audited and a statement giving details of ell
related party transactions is placed before the Audit committee and the Board of Directors for their approval.

VIGILMECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The Company has a vigil mechanism named Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instance of fraud and fnismanagement
and provide a mechanism for the Directors / Employees of the Company to approach the designated persons /
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company to, inter alia, report to the management instances of unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the company's code of conduct or ethics policy.

In staying true to our values strength, performance and passion and in fine with our vision of being one of the most
respected companies in India, the Company is committed to the high standards of corporate govemnance and
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stakenolder responsibility. The details of the policy is explained in the Corporate Govemance Reportand also posted
on the website of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES:

As a part of ils initiative under “Corporate Social Respansibility (CSR), the Company has undertaken prejects in the
areas of Sports Training for Tribal Children and promoting heaithcare including praventive healthcare. These projects
are in accordance with Schedule V1| of the Companies Act, 2013. The Reporlon CSR Activilies is annexed herewith as
“Annexurs-00°.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO:

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange eamings and outgo as
stipulated under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 20173 read with the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, is set out
harewith as “Annexure C" to this Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The information under Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Ruies, 2014 and forming part of the Diractors' Report for the year ended 31%
March, 2016 is set out herewith as “Annexure B"

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:

The Company has adopted a Code of Fair Disclosure as per regulation 8(1)& (2) and Code of Gonduct as per
regulation 9(1)&(2) of the SEB! (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Reguiations, 2015 for Prevention of Insider Trading with
& view ta regulate trading in securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The code requires
pre- clearance for dealing in the Company's Shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the
Directors and the designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in refation to
the Company and during the period when the trading window is closed. All Directors and designated employees have
confimed compliance with the code.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Board of Directors appreciates the devoted services of the workers, staff and executives who have contributed to

the efficient management of the aftairs ofthe Company.

Your directors place on record their gratitude to the State and Cantra) Govemment, the company's Bankers,
Customers, Suppliers and Shareholders for their continued co-pperation and support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directars

' Viren C. Mirani
Place : Mumbai Chairman & Managing Director
Date : 23-05-2016 {DIN ; 00044901}
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INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.
ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT :

The fact remains that India’s economy remained on track throughout the Financial year of 2015-16. However, the
Global economies continuedto struggle and remain weak.

Our company focuses mainly on the export markets considering the larger mix of customers in different
Geographies around the world as well as multiplicity of applications for the company's products.

indian customers, on the other hand, comprise of only pharmaceutical /neutraceutical users in the form of Hard
Gelatine Capsules (HGC) and the Soft Shell Capsules (SSC). Alarge portion of both the capsutas are exported in
the form of Empty HGC or then in the form of formulations. Due to the weak Global economnies the pharmaceutical
companias and the capsute exportars have been tacing major setbacks due to the inability of the foreign buyers to
kaep up with tha commitments of timely paymants.

Ta make matters even more complex, there has been a reversal in the availability of raw materials in the worid,
whereby the erstwhile aréas cof South Amarica which were suifering from an acute shortage of cattle hides
(another source for manutacturing Gelatine) have tumed around and have now been enjoying a surplus of the
same. This has resulted into a scenario where the availability of cattle hide Gelatine has become available in
larger abundance. Thus leading to lower prices around the world inciuding India.

The raw material situation in India on the other hand has been getting even more acute espacially with the cow
slaughter bans being implemented in certain states and similar sentiment prevailing in additional states. This has
lead to prices of crushed bones rising to historic highs and thereby making the Gelatine costs high. Capsule
manufacturers in India are finding the imports of Gelatine from overseas especially, Europa/JSA as well as South
America cheaper and tha volume of Gelatins import is steadily increasing.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS:
Opportunities:

The raw material scenario being what it is in india is far from encouraging and in order to tide with the difficuit
scenario it was decided to make several representations to the Govemment of India for the removal of import
restrictions for the same. Once the restrictions have been removed it would allow cheaper raw materials to be
available and thersby increase the competitiveness of the company's products.

Threats:

The Government of India, through the Central Drugs Standards Control Organisation, had received a proposal for
the replacement of capsules in India produced out of Gelatine to capsules produced out of vegetable sources.

There have been several debates going on with the Dirugs Controllers office to dissuade them about the long term
knowledge and proven efficacies of Gelatine capsules as opposed to other capsules being proposed due to the
limited information available on their long terms usage and the potential incompatibilities with the several drugs
and formulations currently available in the marketin the form of Gelatine capsuies.

However, no final decision has besn taken so far and the matter is still under discussicn and consideration with
the Government ot India,

SEGMENT WISE AND PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE:

Due to acute shortage of crushed bones in the Indian market owing to several reasons on account of religicn and
the diversion of bone for the production of Meat & Bone Meal (MBM) for poultry feading, the competitiveness of
Indian products has sharply declined and this has lead to the sudden curtailment in the off take for Ossein in the
Global markets where raw material prices are way below the Indian raw matenial prices.

Gelatine of Bovine Bone raw materials, to some exient, remains in demand as it caters to some special
applications and for which India commands some dominance. Howaver, sales have been lower as customers
who can use alternative source (animal hide/pig skin) Gelatines since they are much lower in price as compared
tothe high Indian Gelatine, have switched overtothose alternatives.

Di-Calcium Phosphate (DCP) sales have alsc been under pressure with the lower crop of soya bean meal in India

and the spurt in the consumption of the MBM which is a cheaper alternative for achieving the protein requirements
inthe poultry feads.
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OUTLOOK:

Based on the current situation in Europe, the price of raw matenials are likely to be moving upwards duse to
structural reasons within Europe and this may see some increase in Gelatine prices which may evantually allow
someincrease in the Global prices of Gelatine from the currently dismally iow levels.

Although given the current challenges in the Indian scenario with relation to the proposal for replacement of
Gelatine capsuies by cellulose based capsudles, there can be major setbacks going forward.

RISKS AND CONCERNS:

As enumerated above the raw material situation needs to improve in india in order to be more competitive in the
export markets where raw materials are available in abundance and hence international manufacturers are in a
position to lower their prices in the Global markets. We have already heen witnessing the sharp rise in the import
of Gelatinas into India from all over the world where the volumes have increased by almost 400% in the last 5
years.

As also the potential threaf of replacement of Gelatine capsules in India, if implemanted, can be major cause of
concern forthe company and the Galatine industry of India.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has proper and adequate intemal control systems to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and
protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and those transactions are authorized, recorded and
reported correctly.

The intemal contro! is supplemented by an extensive programme of internal audit, review by management and
documented policies, guidelines and pracedures. The internal control is designed to ensure that the financial and
other racords are refiable for preparing financial statements and other data and for maintaining accountability of
assets. The managementis cornmitted to a regular review of this aspect.

DISCUSSION OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:

Turnover decreased by 18.83% to ¥ 9,118.31 Lacs during the year ended 31 Match, 2016 as compared to
¥ 11,233.51 Lacs during the previous year.

EBIDTA (Eamings before Interest, Depreciation, Taxes and Extra Ordinary ltem) for the Current year is T 948.30

Lacs as against ¥1,233.03 Lacsinthe previous year.
The Board of Directors recommended dividend @ 9% as against @ 15%in the previous year.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES/ INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, INCLUDING
NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED:

The Company recognizes the importance and contribution of its Human Resources for its growth and
development and is committed to the development of its people. The Company has implemented various
methods and practices for Human Resources Development.

The Company has 91 Employees on its roll as on 31% March, 2016.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS:

Statements in the Management's Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s projections, estimates,
expeactations or predictions may be “forward looking predictions” within the meaning of applicabie securities laws
and regulations. Actual results may differ from such estimates, projections, etc., whether expressed or implied.
Factors which would make a significant difference to the Company’s operations include achievemsant of hetter
quality and good market price in domestic and overseas market, changes in Government regufaticns and tax
laws, economic conditions affecting demand/ supplies and other environmental factors over which the Company
does not have any control.
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

1. STATEMENT CONTAINING INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 197{12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
READ WITH RULE 5{1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL)}RULES, 2014 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 20186,

. Median Increase
Sr. . Remuneration Rem ti .
Director / KMP uneration Ratio %
No. ¥Lacs of Empioyees {Amount)
Tlacs
1516 | 1415 | 1516 | 14-15 | 15416 | 14-15| 1516 | 1415
1. Viren C, Mirani 138.00 | 98.38 262 | 240 | 52.87 | 40.98| 4030 17.57
{Managing Director}
2, Prestal P. Mepani 7.38 6.24 262 | 240 282 280| 18.27|20.23
(Company Secretary)
3 K. F.Vagedia 9.96 8.55 262 | 240 .80 356| 1649 | 688
{Chief Financial Officer)

Note : Above % is calculated on the basis of remuneration excluding retirement benefits and sitting fees.

2, Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31* March, 2018 ware 91 Nos. and as on
31" March, 2015 were 83 Nos.

3. Thereis no varlable component of remunaration to the Directors,

4, No employee has received remunaration in excess of highest paid Director of the Company during the Financial
Year2015-2016.

5. a) Performance of the Company :
1. Profitbefore Tax:

TinLacs
Description 2015-2016 2014-2015
Profit before tax 47349 721.55
2. Variationsin EPS of the Company :
T
Description As on 31.03.2016 As on 31.03.2015
EPS 3.90

6.62
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STATEMENT CONTAINING INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 197(12) READ WITH THE RULES 5(2) AND 5{3) OF
THE COMPANIES {APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 FOR

THE YEAR ENDED, 31" MARCH, 2016.

Name Designation Remune- ) Qualification | Age | Experience Date of Last
ration Years Year Commen- Employment
Tlacs cement of and
employment Designation
Viren C. Chairman & 205.61 B.Com. 5% N 21.07.2000 Sr. Executive
Mirani Managing in India
Director Gelatine &
Chemicals
Lid.
Note:

1. The above employmentis contractual.

2. The Remuneration also includes retirament benefits like contribution to Pravident Fund, Gratuity, Unavailed Leave
satc. payable to the Managing Director. '

ANNEXURE ‘C’ TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

[Section 134(3){m) of the Cormpanies Act, 2013 read with rule 8(3) ofthe Cormpanies (Accounts} Rules, 2014]

{A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY :
a) Measures taken for Conservation of Energy:

iy Improved pretreatment process that has resulted in better gelatine yield, thereby reducing cost of
production.

ii) Interrnittent running of ETP equipment based on pollutant load has resulted in fower treatment cast.
i}y Addition of new equipment and processes that have resulted in value addition in quality of product.

b} Additional investments and proposals:

iy Replacement of transparent sheets in building rocfs in order to reduce lighting cost.

i) Continue modificationin ETPin order to achieve state pollution norms autonomousiy.

i} Be-evaluation of feasibiiity of supplementing power requirement with Solar Power Generation.
iv) Installation of Wind Driven Boof Ventilators for saving of energy.

v) Implemantation of new Cleaning-in-process systern that will resulf in saving of time, water and
chemicals.

vi) Studying feasibility of in-house power generation using alternate fue! in order to save electricity cost.

vii} Awaiting approval from SLDC for Power Trading vide National Power Exchange to save on power
cost.

c} Impactof measures in the above:

On implementation of the above, the Company expects to substantially benefit in saving power, chemical &
water consurnption at various stages of the praduction cycle.
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d) Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of product :

FORM - A
[ Powar & Fuel Consumption
Electricity 201516
a) Purchased
Unit (KWH) 10101300.00
Totaf Amount { T lacs) T07.26
Rate / Unit (%) 7.6%
b} Own Generation
1) | Through Diessl Ganerator
Units {KWH) 168432.00
Unit per Ltr. of Digsel 3.25
Cost / Unit %) 20.35
2)t Through FQ Base Generator
Units (KWH) N.A.
Unit per Ltr. of F.O. N.A.
- Cost / Unit (T) N.A.
3}| Through Steam Turbine Generator M.A.
4} | Through Gas Base Generator
Units {KWH} MN.A,
Unit per SM® of Gas N.A.
Cost / Unit (T) N.A.
a) | Fumace Oil / LSHS
Quantity (Kgs.} 1872200.00
Total Amount (T lacs) 420.98
Average Rate per Kgs. (2) 22.49
b) Natural Gas (CNG) /SM’
Ouantity {SM*) 398883.00
Total Amount (¥ lacs) 129.92
Average Rate per SM® (T) 32.57
e) Consumption per unit of product :
Standards 2015-2016
Product-Unit MTs Ossein Gelatine
Electricity Unit 2003.40 3644.59
Furnace Qil Kgs 0.00 1419.40
Natural Gas {CNG) SM? 243.10 1697.36
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() TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION :

FORM ‘B’

Research and Development

i For quality improvement of the main products viz. Ossein and Gelatine, Research and Development
is carriad out by the Company.

ii. The quality of the products manufactured by the company has been accepted by our buyers. Thereis
no rejection in the goods exported. Howaver, there is armple scope for further improvement in the
quality.

iit. Rasearch is being done to establish how our waste can be used as raw material input far other
industries.

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information on Foreign Exchange Eamings and outge is contained in paint No. 14, 15, 16 & 17 of Note Na. 25to the
Financial Statements. : )

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Mumbai Viren C. Mirani
Date :23-05-2016 Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 00044801
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ANNEXURE ‘D’ TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. Abriefoutline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes proposed to be
undertaken and a reforencae to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programmaes:
CSRPolicy is stated herein below:

Web-link:
http:!!www.indiagelatine.com!ﬁnancial:‘Corp%20800%20Resp%20Policy. pdf

2. Composition ofthe CSR committee :

Mr. Viren C. Mirani —  Chairman & Managing Director
Mrs. Shefali V. Mirani —  Non-executive Director
Mr.JayprakashM. Tiwari -  Independent Directar

3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years :
Average netprofit : T 856 lacs

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as In point 3 above):
The company is required ta spend T 17.12 lacs towards CSR,

5. Details of CSR spantforthefnancial year:
(a) Totalamountspentiforthe financial year: ¥ 18.00 lacs

(b} Amountunspent, if any:NIL

{c} Mannerinwhich the amount spent during the financial yearis detaited below

(¥ lacs)
(1} (2} (3) {4) (5) {6) (7) (&)
Sr. |CSR Project] Sectorin Projects ar Amount Amount spent | Cummulative | Amount spent:
No. |or activity which the | programmes | outlay on the projects | expenditure | Direct or
identified projectis | {1) Local area |(budget) or programmes | upto the through
covered or other projector | Sub-heads: reparting implementing
{2) Specify the | programme | {1) Direct period agency
+ state and wisa expenditure
district on projects
where or
projects ar programmes
programmes (2) Overheads
was
undertaken
1. {Centribution | Fromoting Dahanu Taluka, 13.00 13.00 13.00 13.00
towards training of rural Palghar District,
Sports sports, nationaly | Maharashtra
Training for | recognized sports,
fribal Paralympics spors
Children | and Olympic sports|
2. | Conlribution Promoting Kidney Dialysis 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
tawards the healthcare Hospital,
charitable including Jamnagar,
aclivities preventive Gujarat
camedoulby | healthcare
the Kidney
Dialysis Hospital
TOTAL 18.00 18.00 18.00 18.00
* Details of the implementing agencies —
1. NareshwadiLearning Centre, Maharashtra
2. ShreeAnandabava Seva Sanstha, Gujarat
K.P.Vagadia Viren C. Mirani
{Chief Financial Officer) {Chairman CSR Committoe)
DIN: 00044901

Date : 23-05-2016
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A BRIEF OUTLINE OF THE COMPANY'S CSR POLICY, INCLUDING QVERVIEW QF PROJECTS OR
PROGRAMMES PROPOSED TO BEUNDERTAKEN :

+ The objective of the company's Corporate Social Responsibility policy is to lay down guiding principles for proper
functioning of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities and also to attain sustainable development of
sociely.

* The company has been engaged in the CSR related activities since many years and has contributed generousty in
many areas of socia} development through a charitable trust promoted by the KVS group.

+ Since the registered office of IGCL is situated at Ahmedabad and the factory is located at Vapi, both in the State of
Guijarat, preference of CSR activities will be given to the local area and areas around where it operates. However,
other areas may also be covered if the CSR committee thinks the same to be appropriate.

« Pursuant to the provisions of Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2013 read with notification No, GSR 130{(E) dt.
27/02/14, Comrigenda No. GSR 261(E) dt. 31/03/14 and GSR 568(E} dt. 06/08/14 following would be the areas of
CSR activities: .

a) eradicating hunger, poverly and malnutrition, promoting healthcare including preventive health care and
sanitation and making available safe drinking water;

b} promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills especially
among children, women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects;

¢} promoting gender equalily, empowering women, setling up homes and hostels for women and orphans;
setting up old age homes, day care centres and such other facilities for senior citizens and measures for
raducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups;

d} ensuring environmental sustainably, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal welfare, agro
forestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, air and water;

g} protection of national heritage, arl and culture in¢luding restoration of buildings and sites of histonical
importance and works of art; setting up public libraries, promotion and development of traditional arts and
handicrafts;

fi  measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents;
g} training to promote rural sports, nationally recagnized sporls, Paralympics sports and Olympic sports;

h)  contribution to Prime Minister's Nationel Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the Central Government for
socio-economic development and relief and welfare of the scheduled castes, the scheduled tribes, other
backward classes, minotities and womnen;

i)  contrbutions or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic institutions which are
approved by the Central Government;

i ruraldevelopment projects;
%} slumareadevelopment;
I} similarother objects.

ANNEXURE ‘E’ TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FCR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2016
[Pursuant to section 204{1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companises
{Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Aules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
India Gelatine & Chemicals Ltd.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutery provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by India Gelatine & Chemicals Ltd (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reascnable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the company and atso the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives
during tha conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in aur opinion, the company has, during the audit period
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covering the financial year ended on 31.03.2016, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compfiance-machanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by India
Gelatine & Chemicals Ltd. for the financial year ended on 31.03.20186 according to the provisions of:

{l} The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act} and the rules made thereunder;
{iiy The Securities Contracts {(Regulation) Act, 1956 {('SCRA’) and the rutes made thereunder;
{iif) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rutes and requlations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commerciaf Borrowings; -Not Applicable

(v} The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of india Act, 1992
('SEBI Act’):

{a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
20115

{b) The Securities and Exchange Beard of India (Prohibiticn of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

{c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009 -Not Appiicable;

{d} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 Not Applicable;

{8} The Securities and Exchange Board of india {Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008— Not
Applicable;

{fi The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Registrars {0 an [ssue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client— Not Applicable;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 - Not Applicable;
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1988 - Not Applicabte; and

(I} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Lisitng Obligations and Disclosure and Requirements)
Regulations 2015;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(iy The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s), - BSE Limited & National Stock
Exchange Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further repori that

The Board of Directars of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the compasition of the Board of Directars that took place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed nates on agenda were
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further informaticn and
clarifications on the agenda items Defore the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as pait of the
minutes,
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We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 1aws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events / actions having a major bearing on the
company's affairs, in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to
above.

Chirag Shah

Partner

Place : Ahmedabad Samdani Shah & Associates
Date : 23-05-2016 FCS No. 5545
CP No. 3498

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annaxed as Annexure ‘A’ and forms an integral part of this
report.

‘Annexure A’
To,
The Members
India Gelatine & Chemicals Ltd.
Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this lefter.

Management's Responsibility

it is the responsibility of the management of the Compan¥ to maintain secretanial records, devise proper systems to .
ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are
adaquate and operate etfectively.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsitility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by the
Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

We believe that audit evidence and information obtain from the Company’s managemaent is adequate and appropriate
for usto provide a basis for our opinion.

Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events stc.

Disclaimer

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or
effectivaness with which the management has conducted the attairs of the Company.

Chirag Shah

Partner

Place : Ahmedabad Samdani Shah & Associates
Date :23-05-2016 FCS No. 5545
CP No. 3498
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ANNEXURE ‘F’ TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on tha financial year ended on 31.03.2016

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Form No. MGT-9
. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS :

CIN L99999GJ1973PLCO02260
Registration Date 16.04.1973

Name of the Company India Gelatine & Chemicals Ltd.
Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company having share capital

Address of the Registered office and contact details 703, “SHILP", C.G. Road, Navrangpura,
Ahmedabad - 380009 Tel. No.: {079) 26469514

Whether listed company Yes
Bombay Stock Exchange,
Ahmedabad Stock Exchange
Name, Address and Contact details of LINK INTIME INDIA PVT., LTD.
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,

L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup (W), Mumbai - 400 078.

Tel.: {022) 2594 6970 / 2594 6960

Fax : {022) 2594 6969

Email : RNTHELPDESK@ LINKINTIME.CO.IN
{Lower Case)

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated :-

Sr. No. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total tumover
products / services Product/ Service of the company
1. Ossien 20295 6.20
2 Gelatine 20295 75.77
3 Bi Calcium Phosphate 20295 18.03

lil. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Name and address of CIN Holding / % of Applicable
the company subsidiary/ shares Section
Associate held
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equlty Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equlty)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

- ¢ No. of Shares held at the No. of Sharas held at the % Change
iaterW o beginning of the year end of the year during the
Shareholders (as on 01-04-2015) (as on 31-03-2016) year
% of % of
Demat |Physicat] Total Total | Demat |Physical| Total Tota!
Shares Shares
A. Promoters
{1} Indian
a) Individual/HUF 2953548 4308 | 2957856}  31.4712612538 4308 2616846 27.84 -3.64
b} Central Govt : 0 0 0 {00 H aQ 0 0.00 0.00
c) State Govi(s) 0 0 0 0.00 0 Q 0 0.00 0.00
d) Bodies Corp. 2319489 (123194991 24.67 | 1874539 0| 1874599 19.94 -473
e} Banks / Fl il 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 £.00
f) Any other
{Directors} 1107946 a1} 1107946| 11.79]1873496 0] 1873496 19.93 B.12
Sub-total (A) (1) 6386993 4308 | 6385301 67.93 ) 6360633 4308 ; 6364941 ar.H -0.22
{2} Foreign
a) NRls - Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 Q.00 #.00
b) Othey — Individuals a 0 0 0.00 0 a 0 0.00 0.0
c) Bodies Corp. 0 a g 0.00 ¢ 0 g 0.00 0.00
d) Banks / Fl 0 ] 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
e} Any Other.... o a ] 0.00 0 ] 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-total(A) (2) Q 0 0 0.00 0 0 ] 0.00 0.00
Total shareholding of
Pearotar
Ay = (A1) +(AM(2) 6380993] 4308 | 6385301| 67.03| 6360633 4308 | 6364941 67.711 -0.22
B. Public
Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds o a a 0.00 a ] 0 0.00 0.00
b} Banks / Fl 3566 72 3638 0.04 3566 72 3638 0.04 0.00
c) Central Govt Q 0 a 0.00 0 ¢ ] 0.00 0.00
d} State Govi(s) 0 0 0 0.00 ] 0 0 0.00 0.00
e) Venture Gapital Funds 0 0 0 0.00 | 0 0 0.00 0.00
f) Insurance Companies 0 0 ] 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
) Flls 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
hj Foreign Venture 0 0 0 0.0D ) 0 0 0.00 ©.00
Capital Funds 0 ] 0 0.00 0 o 0 0.00 0.0¢
i) Others{specify) 0 0 0 040 ] 0 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-tatai (B)(1) 3566 72 3638 0.04 3566 12 3638 0.04 0.00
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No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the % Change
Category of beginning of the year end of the year during the
Shareholders (as on 01-04-2015) (as on 31-03-2016) year
% of % of
Demat |Physical| Total Total Demat |Physical| Total Total
Shares Shares
2. Non- institutians
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian 150939 2351 | 156290 1661 100069 2351 105420 1.12 -0.54
ii) Overseas a ] 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
b) Individuals
iy Individual
shareholders
halding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 11akh | 1711345| 486052 | 21973971 23.38 [ 1690087 | 472433 2162520 23.01 -0.37
i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
in excess of
¥ 1 lakh 625695| 10360| 636055 6.76 | 740131 Dy 74013t 7.87 11
c} Others (specify)
- Non Rasident Rep 15517 0] 15517 017 17177 gl 77 0.18 0.01
- Non Rep 5402 400 5802 0.06 5773 400 6173 0.07 0.0
- Non Domestic Co, 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
-Trusts 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-tatal (B){2) 2508898) 502163 | 3011061 32.03 { 2553237 | 478184 | 3031421 32.26 0.22
Totat Public
Shareholding
{B)=(B}{1)+ (B}2) 2512464] 502235 | 3014699 32.07 2556803 | 478256 ) 3035053 32.29 0.22
C. Shares held by
Custodian for 1] ] 1] 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
GDRs & AORs
Grand Total
{A+B+L) 8893457 506543 | 9400000 100 [8917436 | 482564 | 9400000| 100.00 0.00
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(il Shareholding of Promoaters

hSJ; Shareholder's Name ;htifzggil?:sa;;h;1 '.’533'%'5'1"% end of tr?:l ;g:o(l:;nognaé; [](?3-2016)
No.of | % oftotal % of No. of | % of total % of 1% change
Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares | in share-
of the Pledged / of the Pledged / | holding
Company | Encumb- Company | Encumb- | during
ared ered the year
to to
total total
shares sharas
11 Aditi P. Mirani 3840 0.041 0.000 3840 0.041 0.000 0.000
2| Ansuya.Jayantial 15360 0.163 g.000 ] 0.000 0.000; -0.163
3| ArjunFalgu Sunil P Mirani 468 0.005 0.000 468 0.005 0.000} 0.000
4| Chandrasinh HansrajMirani HUF 11824 0126 0.000 11824 0.126 0.000 0.000
5| DivyaprabhaC. Mirani 82418 0.877 6.000 82418 0.877 0.000 0.000
6| Divyaprabha C.Mitani 467116 4.969 0.000 467116 4.969 0.000 0.000
71 HinaN.Mirani 100 0.001 0.000 0 0.000 0.000| -0.001
81 JankiK. Mirani 2000 0.021 0.000 0 0.000 0.000] -0.021
9| JashN. Mirani 100 0.001 0.000 g 0.000 .000} -0.007
10| JasumatiJ. Thaker 5800 0.062 0.000 800 0.009 0.000] -0.053
11| KhimijiVisram and Sons Gujrat
Private Limited 9480 0101 0.000 0 0.000 0.000] -0.101
12| Kisharsinh R Mirani HUF 11576 0.123 0.000 0 0.000 0.000| -0.123
13| Kishorsinh 8. Mirani 208948 2.223 n.oco 0 0.000 0.000] -2.223
14 | Kishorsinh R. Micani 82176 0.874 0.000 0 0.000 0.000] -0.874
151 MadhayN. Mirani 360666 3.837 0.000 360666 3.837 0.000] 0.000
16 | MadhavN. Mirani 45888 0.488 0.000 45888 0.488 0.000 0.000
17 | Manish K. Mirani 100 0.001 0.000 0 0.000 0.000f -0.001
181 ManoramaN. Mirani 563144 5.991 0.000 563144 5.991 0.000f 0.000
19| Manorama N. Mirani 1436 0.015 0.000 1436 0.015 0.000 0.000
20 [ Nandini Sunil Mirani 2500 0.027 0.000 2500 0.027 0.000 0.000
21 | Navinchandra R Mirani HUF 11984 0127 0.000 11984 0.127 0.000{ 0.000
22 | NayankurnarC.Mirani 100 0.001 0.000 0 0.000 0.000] -0.001
23| Nimisha ManishMirani 2500 0.027 0.000 0 0.000 g.0oaf -0.027
241 OliveFinanca & Investments v Ltd] 1874599 19.943 0.000| 1874599 19.943 0.000 0.000
25| Pratapsinh H Mirani 404122 4,299 0.000 404122 4.299 0.000 0.000
26 | Purnima K.Mirani 2000 0.021 0.000 0 0.000 0.006f -0.021
27 1 Rahul C Mirani 8550 0.091 . 0.000 0 0.000 0.000{ -0.091
281 RajeshriN.Mirani -4500 0.048 0.000 4500 0.048 0.000y 0.000
2691 SCIL Capital India Limnited 435420 4.632 0.000 ] 0.000 0,000] -4.632
30| ShefaliV.Mirani 2500 0.027 0.000 765650 8.145 0.000 8.118
31| SunifP.Mirani 656140 6.980 0.008 656140 6.980 0,000 0.000
32 | Tanmay N. Mirani 100 0.001 2.000 0 0.000 0.000] -0.001
33| VirenC. Mirani 920000 9.787 0.000 420000 9,787 0.000 0.600
3 | VirenC. Mirani 187846 1.998 0.000 187846 1.998 0.000 0.000
Total 6385301 57.928 0.000) 6364901 67.712 0.000| -0.216
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(iii) Changein Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there s no change)

Sr. Sharehoider's Name Shareholding Date* Increase / | Reason Cumulative
Ne. (Decrease) Sh;rehuldmg
in share during the year
holding {01.04.2015to
31.03.2016)
No. of % of No. of % of
Shargs total Shares total
at beginning of | Shares Shares
the year of the of the
(01.04.2015) ) com- Com-
end of the year
31.03.2016) | PV pany
1 | HinaMirani 100 0.0 01.04.2015
19.05.2015 {100y | Transfen 0 0.000
0 0.060] 3.03.2016
2 | Janki K. Mirani 2,000 0.021 01.04.2015
19.05.2015 {2,000){ Transfen 0 0.000
0 0.000} 31.03.2016
3 | JashMirzni 100 0.001 01.04.2015
19.05.2015 (100} | Transfen ¢ 0.000
¢ 0.000{ 31.03.2016
4 | Tanmay Mirani 100 0.01 01.04.2015
19.05.2015 {100){ Transfer 0| 0.000
0 0.000] 31.03.2016
5 | Khimjivisramand Sons Gujrat Private L td 9,430 o010 01.04.2015
19.05.2015 {9.480) | Transfer| 0 0.000
4 0.000 31.03.2016
6 | Kishorsinh A Miranl HUF 11,576 0123 01.04.2015
19.05.2015 {11,576) } Transfen ] 0.0060
0 0.000] 31.03.2016
7 | Kishorsinh R. Mirani 2,08,948 2.223 01.04.2015
19.05.2015 {2,08,948) | Transfer G 0.600
] 0.0007  31.03.2016
8 | Kishorsinh A. Mirani 82,176 0874] 01.042015
19.05.215 {82,176)| Transfen 0 0.000
] 0.006 31.03.2016
9 | Manish Mirani 100 0.001 01.04.2015
19.05.201% {100} Transfer ¢l ©.000
0 0.060] H.03.2016
10 | Jasumati J. Thakar 5,800 0062] 01.04.2015
{5,000) Sale 800 0.109
800 0.009 31.03.2016
11 | Nayankumar C. Mirani 100 0.0t1 01.04.2015
19.05.2015 {100} Transfen o[ 0.000
0 0.00G) 31.03.2016
12 | Nimisha Manish Mirzni 2,500 0.027 01.04.2015
19.05.2015 {2,500} | Transter 0 €.060
0 0.000] 31.03.2016
13 | Purnima K, Mirani 2,000 002t} 01.04.2015
19.05.2015 {2,000)| Transfer ¢l 0000
0 0.000 31.03.2016
14 { Rahul C. Mirani 8,550 0.0%1 01.04.205
19.05.2015 {8,550){ Transfer 0 0.00
0 0.000 31.03.2016
15 | SCIL Capitaf India Ltd. 435,420 4.632 01.04.2015
19.05.2018 {4,35420) | Transfen 0 0.000
0 GO0GE 31.03.2016
16 | ShefaltV. Mirani 2,500 047 01.04.2015
19.05.2015 1.63,150 plotars2 Transfer 7.65,650 8.145
7,865,850 8145} 3103.206

" Date of transfer has been considered on the date on which beneficiary position was provided by the Depositories to
your comparny,
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{iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs

end ADRs):
Sr. Shareholder's Name Sharsholding Date Increase / | Reason Cumulative
No. [Decrease) Shareholding
in share during the year
halding (01.04.2015 10
31..03.2016)
For each of the top ten No. of % of No. of % of
Shareholders Shares total Shares total
at beginning of { Shares Shares
the year of the of the
(01.04.2015)/ | Com- Com-
pnd of the year | pany pany
{(31.03.2016
1| Sangita¥. Parikh 48,909 0.52] 01.04.2015 0
48,909 0521 31.03.2016 4§ 909 052
2 | VinodchandraM.Parekh 45,851 049 01.04.2015 ]
45,851 049 31.03.2016 45,851 049
3 | MayaRawat 45,241 048f 01.04.2015 0
45,241 048{ 31.03.2016 45,241 0.48
4| SubramanianP ' o] 000] 01.042015
43,450 0461 31.03.2016 43,450 purchase| 43,450 0.46
5 | KalpanaJain 42,077 045] 01.04.2015 a
42077 0.45f 31.03.2016 A2077 0.45
6 | Vinodchandra M. Parekh 29,454 28] 01.04.2015 {
29,454 0.28] 31.03.2016 28,454 028
7 | NalinA. Patal 30,000 031 01.04.2015 {1,312)]  saie
28,688 0.3 31.03.2016 28,688 03
8| RameshkumarN. Mevada a 000] 01.04.2015 ]
27,103 028| 31.03.2016 27,103 | purchase, 27,103 0.2%
g { Jitendra M. Parekh 26,756 0.28] 01.04.2015 0
26,756 0.28] 21.03.2016 26,756 (.28
1@ | Chandrika V. Parekh 25,533 p27| 01.042015 a
25,533 0.97| 31.03.2016 25,533 0.27
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{v} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel :

Sr. Shareholder's Name Shareholding Date* Increase / | Reason Cumulative
No. ' {Dacrease) Shareholding
in share during the year
holding (01.04.2015 %0
31..03.2016)
No. of % of No. of % of
Shares total Shares total
at beginning of | Shares Shares
the year of the of the
(01.04.2015)/ | Com- Com-
end of the year | pany pany
(31.03.2016) |
Directors
1| Mr.VirenC. Mirani 11078461 11,790} 01.04.2015 11,07,846( 11.780
11,07,846 | 11.790] 31.03.2016
2 | Mr. Mayankumar G. Mirani 100 0.0m 01.04.2015
19.05.2015 (100)| Transfer o] o000
] 0000 31.03.2016
3 | Mrs. ShefaliV. Mirani 2,500 04277 01.04.2015
19.05.2015 7.63,150] Inter-se 7.65,650 B.145
Transfer
7,65,650 8.145] 31.03.2016
Kay Managerial Persennal
1| Kalidas P. Vagadia 768 0.008] 01.04.201% Transferred
04.04.2015 3,068 by way 38361 0041
3,436 ¢.041 31.03.2016 of gift

* Data of transfer has been considered as the data on which the benaficiary position was provided by the Depositories to your Company

V.

INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans
excluding deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indehtedness

Indebtedness atthe beginning of the
Financial year

i} Principal Amount

i) Interestdue butnot paid

iii} Interestacecrued butnotdue

Total (i+ik+il}

Change in Indebtedness during the
Financial year

Addition

Reduction

HetChange

Indebtedness at the end of the Financial year
i} Principal Amount

ii} Interestdue butnot paid

i) Interestaccrued but not due

Total (i+ii+lii)

NiL

NIL

NIL

NIL
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Vi. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager :
Sr.No Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager | Total Amount
Mr. Viren C. Mirani
{Managing Director)
1. Gross salary
{a) Satary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 1,14,00,000 1,14,00,000
ofthe Income Tax Act,1961
{b) Value of perquisites u/s 17{2) of Income Tax Act, 1961 24,00,000 24,00,000
(¢} Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 ¥ 0
2 Stock Option - -
3. Sweat Equity - -
4, Commission
- a5 % of profit - -
- others, specify - -
5. Others, please specity-
i} Deffered bonus (pertaining to the current Financial year
payablein 2016-17) 0 0
i} Retirement benetit 0 0
Total {A) 1,38,00,000 *1,38,00,000
Ceiling as perthe Act 1,38,00,000

* Excluding exempted perquisities

B. Remuneration to other directors :

St.No Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
Amount
1. Independent Directors MeP.P. Madhavil | MrJ.M.Tiwad | Mr. SN Pitle

Fee tor attending

Board and Committee Meetings 60,000 50,000 55,000 1,865,000

« Commission - - - -

+ Others, please specify - - - -
Total B (1) 60,000 50,000 55,000 1,G5,000
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Sr.No Particulars of Remuneration Name of Director Total
Amount
. N. C. Mirani
2. Other Non-Executive Directors Mr{ReSiganr}an Mrs. 8.V. Mirani -
Fee for attending
Board and Committes Meetings 10,000 - 25,000 35,000
» Commission - - -
» Dthers, please specify - - -
Total B (2) 10,000 25,000 35,000
Total (B} =B (1) +B(2) 2,00,000
Total Managerial Remuneration 2,00,000
Overall Ceiling as perths Act - - -
C. Remunerationto Key Managerial Personnel Other than MD/ Manager/ WTD
Sr.No Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personne!
Company
CFO Secretary Total
Mr. K. P. Vagadia| Ms. P. P- Mepani
1. | Grosssalaty
(a) Salaryas perprovisions containedin
saction 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1861 0] 7.02,000 7.02,000
(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) income Tax Act, 1961 0 36,000 36,000
{c) Profitsinlieu of salary under
section 17(3} Income Tax Act, 1961 0 0 0
2. | StockOption - - -
3. | SweatEquity - - -
4, | Commission
- a8 % of Profit - - -
- others, specify - - -
5. | Others, please specify- Professional Charges 9,96,000 0 8,96,000
Total C 9,896,000 7,38,000 17,34,000
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Vii. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES :N. A.
Type Section of the Brief Details of Authority Appsal made
Companies Description Penalty / {RD /NCLT/ if any
Act Punishment / COURT) {give Details)
Compounding
fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Ponaity
Punishment NONE
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Psenalty
Punishment NONE
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Panalty
Punishment NONE
Compounding

Place : Mumbai
Date : 23-05-2016
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Viren C. Mirani
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00044901
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ANNEXURE ‘G’ TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FORM AOC -2

(Pursuant to Section 134(3}(h) of the Companles Act, 2013 read with Rule B{2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with refated parties referred
toin Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso theroto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not atarms length basis:

{a} Name(s}ofthe related party and naturs of relationship.

{b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/ftransactions,

{c) Ouration of the contracts / arrangementsftransactions.

(d) Salientterms of the contracts or amangements or transactions including the value, i any.
{e) Justilication for entering into such contracts or amangements or transactions.

(i  Date(s)of approval by the Board. NA.
{(g) Amount paid as advances, if any.

{h) Dateonwhichthe special resolution was passed.
(i) Amountpaid as advances, [fany.

{) Date onwhich (a)the special resolutlon was passed in genersl meeting as required under first
provison to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Details of materlal contracts or arrangement or transactlons at arms length basis:

(a) Name(s)ofthe related party and nature of relationship.

(b} Nature of contracts/amangementsiransactions.

(¢} Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions.

(d) Salientterms of ths contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, ifany. NA.
(e} Date(s)ofapproval by the Board, if any.

{fi Amountpaid as advances, if any.

By Order of the Board of Directara

) Viren C. Mirani
Place : Mumbai Chaimman & Managing Director
Date : 23-05-2016 DIN : 00044901
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the regulations of SEBI {Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR}) the Company has complied with the requirements of Corporate

Govemance.

Good Corporate Governance makes exceltent business sense. It augments superior Corporate Performance. It is
often the distinguishing faclor between companies that progress rapidly and companies that stagnate. Good
Corporate Governance is a continuous process and is achieved through an optimum mix of regulatory compliance,
disclosures and practices, transparent and fair conduct that enhances the trust of various interest groups like
shareholders, employeas, suppliers, creditors, customers and society atlarge.

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

For IGCL, Corporate Govemance is an important corner stone which creates shareholders’ value on a
sustainable basis. As stated in the past, your company reiterates its commitmant to the concept of
trusteeship. The creed of trusteeship, the backbone of good Corporate Governance is pursued by your
company with consistent and effective adherence to the philosophy of transparency, adequate disclosure,
fairnessto all and independent monitoring and supervision in the conduel of its business opseration.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS :
A, Composition of the Board :
It is well recognized that there shoutd be an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive

Directors. Pursuant to the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, IGCL's Board meets this requirement as it is consisting of 3 Independent Directors, out of the

total &directors as on 31.03.2016

Sr. Name of the Category *Number of **Committee(s)
No. Directors Directorship(s) position
held in Indian (including IGCL)
Public Limited
Companies )
(including IGCL) Member | Chaiman
1.{ Mr. Viren C. Mirani Chaiman &
Managing Director 1 1 0
2.] Mr. Nayan C. Mirani
(resigned w.e.f Non-Executive N.A. N.A, N.A.
30.06.2015)
3.| Mrs. Shefali V. Mirani Non-Executive 1 0 0
4.1 Mr. Jayprakash M. Tiwari | Non-Executive
Independent 1 1 0
5. Mr. Shridhar M. Pittie Non-Executive
Independent 3 2 1
&.| Mr. Pradip P. Madhavii Non-Executive
independent 3 0 4

* Excludes directorship held in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, Companies under Saction 8 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and memberships of managing committees of various chambers/institutions/boards.

** Only Audit Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee have been considered as per the reguiations of
SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regutations, 2015 (LODR).
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B.

Details of numbers, dates and attendance of the Board Meetings :

Sr. | Name of the Number of Board Number of Board | Atftendance at
Na. | Directars meetings held while | meetings attended last AGM
holding the office while holding the
office
1. | Mr. Viren C. Mirani 6 6 YES

2. | Mr. Nayan C. Mirani

(resigned w.e.f 30.06.2015) 2 1 N.A.
3. | Mrs. Shefali V. Mirani 6 5 YES
4. | Mr. Shridhar N. Pittie 6 5 NO
5. | Mr. Pradip P. Madhaviji 8 6 YES

6. | Mr. Jayprakash M. Tiwarn 6 S YES

Tatal 6 Board meatings were held in the year 2015-2016.
The dates on which the said meetings were held are as follows :

(1) 30.04.2015 (4) 24.08.2015
(2) 27.05.2015 (5) 05.11.2015
(3) 01.08.2015 (6) 10.02.2016

3. AUDITCOMMITTEE:
A. Termsof Reference:

Oversight of the company's financial reporting process and the disclosura of its tinancial infarmation to
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and cradible.

Retommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, it required, the replacement or
removal of the statutory auditor and the fixation of auditfees.

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

Reviewing and monitoring the Auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness of audit
process.

Examining financial statement and the Auditors’ Report thereon.

Approval or subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties.
Scrutiny of inter corporate loans and investrments.

Valuation of undertaking or assets of the company wherever itis necessary.

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

Reviewing with the management the statement of uses/ application of funds raised through issue
(public issue/ rights issue/ preferential issue}, the statement of fund utilised for the purpose other than
those stated in the offer document/ prospeclus/ notice and the report submitted by the monitoring
agency. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matiers.

Compliance with listing and other requirements relating to financial statements.
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Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements betore submission to the Board for
approval, with particular reference to:

(a) Matters required to be included in the Directors’ Hesponsipility Statement to be included in the
Board Report.

(b) Changes, if any, in accounting paolicies and practices and reasons for the same.

(c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management.

(d} Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.
(e} Disclosure of any related party transactions as per Accounting Standard 18 and
(f} Qualifications indraftauditreport.

Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for
approval.

Reviewing with the management, performance of statutory and intemal auditors, adequacy of internal
control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
depariment, staffing and seniority of the official heading the depariment, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of intemmal control systems of a material nature and reporting
tha matter to the board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as
well as post audit discussion to ascertain any area of concem.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payments to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders {in case of nonpayment of declared dividends) and creditors.

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism, in case the same is existing.

Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e. the whole time finance director or any other person heading the
finance function or discharging that function.) after assessing the qualification, experience and
background etc. of the candidate.

Carrying out any othar function as is mentioned inthe terms of reference of the audit committee.

REVIEW OF INFORMATION BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

Reviewing management discussion and analysis of financial conditions and result of operations.

Reviewing statement of significant related party transactions {as defined by the Audit Committee)
submitted by management.

Management Letters/ Latter of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors.
Internat Audit Reporis related fo internal control weaknesses and
The appointment, removal and the terms of ramuneration of the Intemal Auditor.

50



INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

Composition :

All the members of the Audit Committee are qualified and having insight to interpret and understand financial
statements.
The Audit Cammittee of the company comprises of the following members:

3&_ Name of Member Category Status No. of meetings attended
1. | Mr. Pradip P. Madhavji Non Executive Chairman S
Independent
Director
2. | Mr. Nayan C. Mirani Non Executive Member 1
{resigned w.e.f 30.06.2015) Director
3.1 Mr. Shridhar N. Pittie Nen Executive Member 5
Independent
Director
4, | Mr. Jayprakash M. Tiwari Non Executive Member 4
’ Independent
Director

C. Meetings during the year :
Total 5 meetings were heldin the year 2015-2016.
The datas on which the said meetings were held are as follows :
(4)05.11.2015

M
(@
(3)

30.04.2015
27.05.2015
01.08.2015

{5)10.02.2016

The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Committee.
Statutory Auditors and internal Auditors were invited and they attended aimost all the meetings.
4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE :

A

Terms of Reference:

Remuneration of employees largely consists of basic remuneration and perquisites.

The components of the total remuneration vary for different cadres and are govemed by industry pattern,
qualifications and experience of the employee, responsibilities handled, individual performance etc.

Compeosltion :

Remuneration committee consists of ;

a) Mr. Shiidhar N. Pittie

b) Mr. Nayan C. Mirani

¢) Mr Jayprakash M. Tiwarni
d) Mr. Pradip P. Madhaviji

Chairman

Member (resigned w.e.f. 30.06.2015)

Member
Member

{appointed to the committee vide Board Resoclution dt. 01.08.2015)

Meetings during the year:

During the year 2015-2016 the said meeting was held on 10.02.2016
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D. HNomination and Remuneration Policy :

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee had recommended the Nomination and Remuneration
Policy of the Company to the Board of Directors which was adopted at the Board Meeting held on
10.02.2016

The said policy may be referred to, at the company’s official website at

htlp://www.indiagelatine.comfinancial/Appointment%204&%20Rermuneration%20Policy. pdf
E. Details of Directors’ remuneration paid tor the year ended 31.03.2018

A. Managing Director:

T
Name Salary Comm, Perks Retirement benefits Total
Mr. Viren C. Mirani |1,14,00,000 0 24,00,000 67,61,414 2,05,61,414
(Managing Director)

Notice period for termination of appointment of Managing Director is six months on either side.
No severance pay is payable on termination of appointrnent.
Others:

- @ h =

All indian Non-executive Directors are paid sitting fees of ¥ 5,000/- for attending Board as well as Audit
Committee meetings.

5  STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE::
A. Terms of reference:

The terms of reference of the committee may be to look into redressal of complaints of stakeholders like
transter of shares, non- receipt of balance shest, non- receipt of declared dividend, nan receipt ofinterest on
deposits, renewal of deposits and non receipt of amount of deposits on maturity or otherwise etc.

B. Composition:
Stakeholder Relationship Cornmittas consists of:
a) Mr. Pradip P. Madhaviji - Chairman
b) Mr. Shridhar N. Pittee - Member
c) Mr. Viren C, Mirani - Member

During the year, the Cornmittae held 5 meetings and the attendance of Members was as follows:

ﬁg_ Name of Member Status No. of meetings attended
1. | Mr. Pradip P. Madhaviji Chairman
Mr. Shridhar N. Pittie Member
3. | Mr. Viren C. Mirani Member

The Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer.
C. Meetings during theyear

Total 5 meetings were held in the financial year 2015-2016.
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D. Camplaints:
During the year ended 31st March, 2016, all the complaints received have generally been resolved to the
satisfaction of the complainants and na complaints were pending for redressal either at the beginning or at
the end of the year.
€. CORPORATE SOCIALRESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE :
A. Terms ofrefarence:

The terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee broadly comprises:

To review the existing CSR Poilicy and to make it more comprehensive as to indicate the activities to be
undertaken by the Company as specified in schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013;

To provide guidance on various CSR activities to be undertaken by the Company and to monitor its
progress.

B. Composition:
Tha Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprises of the Chairman and two Directors.

The attendance of Members was as follows ;

Sr.Nal Name of Member Status No. of Meetings Attended
1.] Mr. Viren C. Mirani Chairman 1
2.| Mr. Jayprakash M. Tiwari Mamber 0
3.| Mrs. Shefali V. Mirani Member 1

C. Meetings duringtheyear
Dufing the year 2015-2016 the said meeting was held on 10.02.2016
7. MEETING OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

As per new Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations

2015, the Independant Directors are required to hold atieast one meeting in a year to discuss the following:

a) Reviewthe performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whola.

b) Review the performance of the Chairperson of the Company teking into account the views of executive
directors and non- executive directors,

c) Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and
the Board that is necessary for the Board 1o efectively and reasonably perform their duties.

Accordingly, a meeting had been hald on 29th March, 2016, without the attendance of Non Independent
Directars and members of management. All the iIndependent Directors attended the meseting and discussed the
above points. :

B. EVALUATION OF BOARD EFFECTIVENESS :

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out the annual performance
evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its
Committees. The discussion included inputs received from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board
functioning such as adequacy of the compasition of the Board and its Committees, Board culturs, execution and
performance of specific duties, obligations and govemance.

Aseparate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Chairman

of the Board, who was evaluated on parameters such as leve! of engagement and contribution, independence of
judgement, safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority shareholders etc. The performance
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evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of the
Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors who also reviewed
the performance of the Company Secretary. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation
process.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMMES FOR BOARD MEMBERS :

The Board members are provided with necessary documsents/ brochures, reports and intemal policies to enable
them to familiarize with the Company’s procedures and practices.

Quarterly updates on relevant statutory changes and landmark judicial pronouncements encompassing
important laws are reguiarly circulated to the Directors. Site visits to vanious plant focations are organized for the
Diractors to enable them to understand the operations of the Company.

In terms of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, IGCL is required to
familiarize the Independent Directors of the Company, their roles, rights, respansibilities in the Company, nature
of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company, etc., through various
programmes. Hence a policy was formulated for the same. The policy was approved by the Board of Direclors
effective from 10th February, 2016. The said policy may be referred to, atthe company’s official website at:
hitp:/findiagelatine.com/financial/FAMILIARISATION%20PROGRAMME % 20F OR%20INDEPENDENT%20DI
RECTORS%20(1).pdf

CODE OF CONDUCT :

The code of conduct for the Directors and Senior Management Personnel has been faid down by the boardin the
meeting held on 19.07.2006.

The Company has refined its Code of Conduct and Business Ethics, at the Board meeting held on 09.05.2012,
as per the modified requirements of the Listing Agreement and SEBI, and the same is available on the website of
the Company. The said policy may be referred to, at the company's official website at
http://indiagelatine.comifinancial/Code%20cf%20Conduct. pdf

Annual declaration of the Code has been taken from all the Direclors and Senior Management Personnel of the
Company.

INSIDER TRADING :

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has introduced amendments to the existing Insider Trading
Regulations of 1982 which requires new action steps by corporate and other market intermediaries for the
purpose of prevention of insider Trading.

Pursuant to the requirements of SEBI {(Prohibition of Insider Trading Regulations), 2015 the Company has
adopted a ‘Code of Fair Disclasure and Code of Conduct for prevention of insider trading’ (The Code) with effect
from May 15, 2015. The code is applicable to all direclors and such designated employees who are expected to
have access fo unpublished price sensitive information relating to the Company. The said policy may be referred
10, at the company's official website at hitp:/findiagetatina.comHinancial/code%20adopted. pdf

Ms. P. P. Mepani, Company Secretary, has been appeinted as the Compliance Officer for monitoring adherence
to these Regulations.

DISCLOSURES:

A. Disclosure on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with
the interest of the Company at [arge.

There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with its Promoters,

Directors in Management, their subsidiaties or relatives, etc. that may have potential conflict with the
interests ofthe Company atlarge.
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Transactions with related parties as per requirements of Accounting Standard (AS-18) — ‘Related Party
Disclosures' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are disclosad in ltem No. 10 B&C of
Note No. 25 ta the Financial Statements in the Annual Report.

B. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

tn the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting Standards issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The significant accounting policies which are consistently
applied are setoutin the annexure to Notes to the Financial Staternents.

C. RiskManagement

Business risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process within the Company. During the year
under review, a detailed exercise on ‘Risk Assessment and Management' was camied out covering the
entire gamut of business operations and the Board was informed of the same,

D. Detalls of noncompliance by the Company, penalties, strictures Imposed on the Company by Stock
Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the
last three years;

The Company has complied with all requirements of the Listing Agreements entered into with the Stock
Exchanges as well as the regulations and guidelines of SEBI. Consequently, there were no strictures or
penalties imposed by either SEBI or the Stock Exchanges or any statutory authority for non-compliance of
any matter retated to the capital markets during the last three years.

E. Mon-mandatory requirements

Adoption of non-mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)
Ragulations, 2015 is being reviewed by the Board from time to time.

13. VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWERPOLICY :

Your Company balieves in conducting its business and working with all its stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers and shareholders in an ethical and lawful manner by adopting highest standards of
professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior.

Your Company prohibits any kind of discrimination, harassment, victimization or any other unfair practice baing
adopted against an employee. In accordance with the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regutations, 2015 , your Company has adopted a Whistla Blower Policy with an objective to
provide its employees a mechanism whereby concems can be raised in line with the Company's commitment to
highest standards of ethical, moral and legal business conduct and its commitment to open communication, The
said policy may be referred to, atthe company's official website at

http:/findiagetatine.comfinancial \Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf

14. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION :

A. (i) The Quarterly Un-Audited (Pravisional) Results and the Annual Audited Finendal results of the
company are sent ta the Stock Exchanges immediately after they are approved by the Board and are
also published in the national English newspapers namely “Indian Express {English and Gujarati
editions) and Financial Express”™. Also they are uploaded on the company's website
www.indiagelatine.com. The resuits are published in accordance with the guidelines of tha Stack
Exchanges.

(i) nline with the existing provisions of the SEB| (LODR) Company has created a separate e-mail address
viz. investor@indiagelatine.com to receive complaints and grievances of the investors.

{iii} No formal presentations were made to the Institutional investors and analysts during the year under
review.

{iv} Management Discussion and Analysis Repart forms part of this Annual Repart, which is posted to the
shareholders of the Company.
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B. Share Transfer Agents:

LINK INTIME INDIA PVT. LTD.

C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup (W), Mumbai - 400 078,
Tel.: (022} 2594 6970 / 2594 6960 Fax : (022) 2594 6969

Email : RNTHELPDESK@LINKINTIME.CO.IN {Lower Case)

C. Share Transfer System:

All physical share transfers are effected within 15 days of lodgment, subject to the documents being in
order. The Board has delegated the authority for approval of transfer, transmigsion etc. to the Stakeholdera
Relationship Committee comprising of two Non Executive Independent Directors and one Execufive
Director. A summary of transferfiransmission of shares so approved by the committee is placed before the
Board pericdically.

15. GENERALBODYMEETINGS:

Details of the [ocation of the (ast three AGMs and the details of the resolutions passed or to be passed by Postal
Ballot are as under:

Cansecutive No. of Held at Date Tima
Year A_GM
GICEA {Nirman Bhavan)
2012-2013 41* Gajjar Hall, Nr. Law Garden, 23.08.2013 11.00 am
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad-380006
: GICEA (Nirman Bhavan)
2013-2014 42 Gaijjar Hall, Nr. Law Garden, 05.09.2014 11.00 am

Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad-380008

GICEA (Nirman Bhavan)
2014-2015 43" Gajjar Hall, Nr. Law Garden, 24.09.2015 11.00 am
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad-380005

Whether special resolutions were put through postal ballot last year? N.A

Ara polls proposed to be conducted through postal ballot this year? N.A

18, SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION :
1. 44™ Annual Genera! Meeting
Date : 27" September, 2016
Time : 11.00a.m.

Venue : GICEA (Nirman Bhavan)
Gajjar Hall, Nr. Law Garden,
Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad-380006

2. Date of Book Closurs;
The register of members and share fransfaer books of the company shali remain closed from
20-09-2016 to 27-09-2016 (both days inclusive) for the payment of dividend.

3. Financial Calendar:
Finaricial Year: April 01 to March 31 for the financial year 2016-17, the tentative dates for declaration
of Quarterly un-audited results wifl be by July 31, 20186, October 31, 2016, January 31, 2017 and
April 30, 2017.

4, Dividend payment data:
Dividend will be paid within 30 days of the approval of the same in the Annual General Meeting.
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5

Listing in Stock Exchanges and Stock Codes:

Stock hange Stock Code
Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Lid. 25710

Bombay Stock Exchange Lid. 531253
DematISINin NSDL and CDSL INE342D01012
Website www.indiagelatine.com
Stock data:

High/Low of Market price of Company’s equity shares traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange
during the financial year ended on March 31, 2016 was as follows: .

Market Price Data (Bombay Stock Exchange) for the year 2015-16 (T)
MONTH HIGH LOW
April 88.10 70.00
May 86.45 70.15
June 78.90 63.60
July 108.00 71.60
August 103.00 72.00
September 79.70 70.00
October 8530 73.25
November 85.80 7355
December 98.50 74.00
January 96.45 72.10
February 93.90 70.25
March 79.10 70.10

Address for investor comespondence :

Reglistrar & Share Transfer Agent :

LINK INTIME INDIA PVT. LTD.

C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,

L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup (W), Mumbal - 400 078.

Tel.: (022) 2594 6970 / 2594 6960 Fax : (022) 2594 6069
Email : ANT.HELPDESK@LINKINTIME.CO.IN (Lower Case)

INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALSLTD.

703/704, “Shilp", 7" tloor,

Near Municipal Market,

C.G. Road, Navrangpura,

Ahmedabad —380009.

Tel. No. : (079) 26469514

E-mail: ppm @indiagelatine.com = investor@indlagelatine.com

Distribution of Shareholding as at 31.03.2016

No. of Equity Shares held | No. of Shareholders No. of Shares held Share Holding %
Upte 500 3879 575768 8.125
501 to 1000 581 448771 4.774
1001 to 2000 261 382140 4.065
2001 to 3000 77 190437 2.026
3001 to 4000 62 216133 2.299
4001 to 5000 33 150339 1.599
5001 to 10000 48 333991 3.553
10001 and above 49 7102423 75.559

Total 4990 9400000 100.00
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8. Shareholding Pettern:

N::. Category No. of shares % of Shareholding

1. Promoter & Promoter Group 6364941 67.71

2. | Residentiaf Individual 2902851 30.88

3. | Domestic Companies 105420 1.12

4. | Nationalised Banks 363g 0.04

5. | NRINON REP 6173 007

6. | NRIREP 17477 0.18
Total 9400000 100.00

10.  Equity Shares of the company are traded in Demat.
11. Outstanding GDRs/Warrants : Not Applicable.

12. Plant Location : Manufaciuring Plant of the Company is situated at Plot No.1A, GIDC Industrial Estatse,
National Highway No.8, Vapi-396 185, Gujarat.

13. Greenlnitiative for Paperiess Communications:

The Ministry of Corporate Aflairs, Gevernment of India (MCA) has, vide Circular No. 18/2011 dated
29th April, 2011, undertaken a ‘Green Initiative in Corporate Governance' allowing companies to send
the Annual Report and other documnents to their sharehokiers slectronically.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India has, vide Circular No. CiIR/CFD/DIL/7/2011 direcied listed
companies to supply scft copies of Annual Reports to all those shareholders wiho have registered their
e-mail addresses for the purpose.

Keeping in view the underlying theme and the circulars issued by MCA and SEBI, the Company
propeses to send various communications and documents like notice calling general meetings,
audited financial statements, directors’ repon, auditors’ report stc., henceforth, in electronic form, to
the e-mail address provided by the Members to the Depositories or to the Company.

Please note that you will centinue to be entitled to receive, upon your request, fres of cost, a copy of the
Annual Report and all other communication that may be sent to you elecironically. The Annual Report
will also be avaifable on the Company's website www.indiagelatine.com

This is also a golden opportunity for every shareholder of India Gelatineg & Chemicals Limited to
contribute fo this Corporate Social Responsibility initiative of the company. To support this green
initiative in full measure, members who have not registered their e-mail addresses, so far, are
requestsd to register their e-mail addresses.

DECLARATION ON COMFPLIANCE OF THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT

As provided under SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
Board Members and the Senior management personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code of
conduct forthe year ended March 31, 2016.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Viren C. Mirani
Place : Mumbai Chairman & Managing Director
Date : 23-05-2016 DIN:00044501
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CEQ/ CFO CERTIFICATE UNDER CLAUSE 49(IX) OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT AND UNDER
REGULATION 17(8) OF SEBI {LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATE

The Board of Directors,
INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

Woe certify that :

A, Woe hava reviewad the Financial Statements, read with the Cash Flow Statement of India Gelatine & Chemicals
Limited {the Company) for the year ended 31" March, 2016 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

(i) these statements and other financial information included in this report present a true and fair view of the
Cornpany’s affairs and are in compliance with the existing accounting standards, epplicable iaws and
regulations;

B.  There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by Company during the year
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

C.  We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have
evatuated the effectiveness of the intemal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting.

D. We have disclosed to the Company's Auditors, the Audit Committes, and the Board of Directors all significant
deficiencies in the design or opération of intarnal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps taken or
proposed to be taken to rectity the deficiencies.

E. Wshaveindicated tothe Auditors and the Audit Committee:
() signiflcantchanges, it any, inthe Company’s intemal control over financial reporting during the year;

(i) significant changes in accounting policles during the year, if any, and that the same have been disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements;

() instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the

management or an empioyee having a significant role in the Company's intermal control system over
financial reporting.

Place : Mumbai K. P. Vagadia Viren C. Mirani

Date :23-05-2016 (Chief Financial Officer) {Chairamn & Managing Director}
AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

TheMembers of

INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALSLTD.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALSLTD.,
("the company™ for the year ended on 31* March, 2108, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the
company with the stock exchanges for the period from 1% April, 2015 to 30" November, 2015 and as per the relavant
provisions of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regualtions, 2015 ("Listing Reguations™) for the period from 1* December, 2015 to 31" March, 2016.

The Compliance of condition of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was
limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company to ensure Compliance with the
condition of Cotporate Govemance. Itis neither an audit nor an expression of an opinion on the financial statements of
the Company.

In our opinion and {o the best of our information and according to the explanations given fo us, we certity that the
Company has fully complied with all the mandatery conditions of Corporate Govemnance as stipulated in Chapter IV of
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the said
company with stack exchanges.

For Mahendra N. Shah & Co.,
Chartered Accountanis
FRAN 105775W

CA Chirag M. Shah
Place : Ahmedabad Partner

Date :23-05-2016 M. No.F-45706
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INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of
INDHA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of india Gelatine & Chemicals Ltd.{“the Company”) which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Statemant of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant agcounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Direclors is respensible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(*the Act™} with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and Fair view of the financial
position, financial perfformance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of tha Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and applicetion of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implemantation and maintenance of adequate intemal
financial controls, that were oparating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
racords, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a frue and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
OQur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the auditreport under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

Wa conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Saction 143(10) of the Act.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance aboutwhether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reperting and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accerding to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements, give the information required by the Act in tha manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principies generally accepted in India:

{i) inthe case ofthe Balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the company as atMarch 31, 2016;
(i) inthe case ofthe Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profitfor the year ended on that date; and
(i) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 {*The Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of subsection 11 of section 143 of the Act, We give in the Annexure “A” statement on the matter
specified in paragraphs 3 & 4 ofthe order.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanalicns which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit;
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INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

c. the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Slatement deait with by this reporl are in
agreement with the books of account;

d. in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement comply with the
Accounting Standards referred to in section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of tha Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

a. on the basis of written represeniations received from the directors as on March 31, 20186, and taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 20186, from being appointed as a
directorin terms of sub Section (2} of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

f. In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financiai control over financial reporling were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporling criteria established by the company.

g. With respect to the other matters included in the auditors’ reporl and to best of our information and according to
the explanation given tous:

1) The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in its financial statements
{Referto point4(ji} & point No. 6 of Note No.25 to the financial statement)

2) The company did not have any long-term contracts including detivative contracts for which there were any
materialforeseeable losses.

3} The company has transferred amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investar Education and
Protection Fund by tha Company.

For Mahendra N. Shah & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105775W

Chi .
Place : Ahmedabad CA g:r%ngr Shah

Date :23-05-2016 M. No.F-457086

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Raguirements’ of our report of even
date to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2016:

1.  Inrespectof Fixed Assets:

{a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full parliculars, including quantitative details and
situation of {ixed assets;

{b} The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the managementin a phased manner, designed to cover
all the items over a period of five years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
company and nature of its business. According to information and explanation given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) Thetitle deeds ofimmaovable properlies are in the name of the company.
2. Inrespectofinventories:

According to information and explanation given to us, Physical verification of inventories has been conducted in
reasonable interval by the Management and no material discrepancies were naticed on physical verification
during the year.

3. Inrespect of Loans granted to the parlies covered under section 189 of the Act, the company is receiving the
principal and Interest amount regularly as stipulated and the terms and conditions of the same are not prima facie
prejudicial to the interest of the company. None ofthe amounts are overdue.

4.  Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with the
provisions of the section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans and investments.

5. According fo information and exptanation given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Seclions 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to
the deposits accepted from the public are not appiicable.
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The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of Cost Records under section 148(1} ofthe Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of manufacturing activities of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the accounts and
records of the Company in this connection and are ofthe opinion, that prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.

According to information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account and records,

(a) the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,

b)

Employess State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value
Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According te the information
and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above wers in arrears as at
March 31, 2016 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they become payabie.

According to the information and explanations givento us, there are no material dues of tncome Tax, Sales
Tax, and Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Wealth Tax, Duty of Customs and Cess which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute, exceptin respect to Income Tax penalty
and Excise Duty, the following dues have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes
according to information and explanations given to us, :

Name of the | Nature of dues Amount | Period to which Forum where the
Statute (T lacs) { the amount relates dispute is pending

Central Excise Duty 8.15 1980-81 to Dy. Commigsioner
Excise Act, 1944 1983-B4 of CEGAT Excise

Service Tax Service 36.01 2008-09 to CESTAT Ahmedabad
Act Tax 2013-14 & Commissioner of Excise

Income Tax Act, TDemand raised in 53.23 2012-13 Commissioner of Income Tax
1981 Scrutiny Assessment

Income Tax Act, [Uemand raised in 49 26 2013-14

Commissioner of Income Tax
1961 Scrutiny Assessment

The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financiai institulion, bank,
Governmentar dues to debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations giiven by the management, the company has not raised
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer including debt instruments and term Loans during
the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicabie to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the
Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. )

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial remuneration has
been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Companies Act;

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of ctause 3 (xii} of the Order
are not applicable ta the Company.

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with seclion 177 and 188 of
Companies Acl, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debantures during the year
under review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 {xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the company has not entered into
any non-tash transaclions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not appliceble to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Inour o;inion, the cognpank/ is not required to be registered under section 45 1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Acl, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xwi} of the Order are not applicable to the Company and

h o) ted :
ence notcommented upon For and on behaif of Mahendra N. Shah & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105775W

Chirag M. Shah

Place : Ahmedabad Partner
: 23-05-2016 M. No. F-45706

Date
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INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

Annexure ‘B’

Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ report of even date on the Standalone
financial statements of India Gelatine & Chemicals Ltd.

Report on the Intemal Financial Controls under Clause (1} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013({“the Act")

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls gver Financial Reportiné; of India Gelatine & Chemicals Ltd (“the
Company™) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company
for the year ended onthat date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls based an the
internal contro! over financial reporting criteria established by the Company cansiderin%the essential components of
internat control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequale intemnal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the arderly and efficient
-conduct of its business, including adherence to campany’s policies, the safequarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

- Auditors’Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinian on the Campany's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting sthe “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAIl and deemed to be
prescribed under saction 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
%ﬁplicabie to an audit of internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ose Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comiply with ethical requirements and plan and perferm the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects,

QOur audit involves perfarming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
systems over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
raporting ingluded obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reparting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ Judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Intemnal Financial Controls over Financial Reparting.

Acompany’s internal financial control aver financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purpose in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ﬁrinc!lples. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispaositions of the assets of the company. {2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accardance with generally accepted accounting principles , and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company, and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention ar timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent [imitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or |mproK,er management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial conlrols over financial reporting to future
genods are subject fo the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
acause of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies of procedures may deteriorate.

Qpinlon

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial contrel system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting was operaurg effectively as on March 31, 2016,
based on the internat control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential

components of internal controls slated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporis issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

For and on behalf of Mahendra N. Shah & Ca.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN 105775W

Chirag M. Shah
Place : Ahmedabad Partner

Date :23-05-2016 M. Na. F45708
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INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31" MARCH, 2016

Amountin?¥
Refer Note As at
No. 31.03.2016
1 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
) Bharenoiters Funds ) :
(d/ Stiare capral ? 840,00, oo
(b) Reserves and surplus 2 111,74,81,022
121,14,81,022
2 Non-current Liabilities
(a) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 3 7,76,34,460
{b) Other Long term liabilities 4 5,62,182
(c) Long-term provisions 5 14,03,34,082
21,85,30,724
3 Current Liabilities
(a) Trade payables 2,82,14,314
(b) Other current liabilities 6 1,68,12,809
(c) Short-term provisions 7 9,04,45,941
13,54,73,064
TOTAL 156,54,84,810
. ASSETS
Non-current Assets
1 (a) Fixed assets
(i) Tangible assets 8(a) 45,06,67,853
(i) Intangible assets 8(b) 15,48,720
(i) Capital work-in-progress 8(c) 40,90,485
(b) Non-current investments 9 6,78,66,035
(c) Long-term loans and advances 10 14,31,41,543
(d) Other Non Current Assets 11 22,44,262
66,95,58,898
2 Current Assets »
(a) Inventories 12 23,93,70,812
(b) Trade receivables 13 6,09,61,921
(c) Cash and cash equivalents 14 40,55,70,366
(d) Short-term loans and advances 15 17,81,72,105
(e) Other current assets 16 1,18,50,708
89,59,25,912 | 84/(
TOTAL 156,54,84,810 | 153
Significant Accounting Policies and the accompanying Notes
are an integral part of the Financial Statements 24
As per our attached report of even date.
For MAHENDRA N. SHAH & CO. . Viren C. Mirani Pradip P. Madhavji

Chartered Accountants
FRN105775W

CA Chirag M. Shah
Partner

M. No.: F45706

Place : Ahmedabad : f;;gﬁ{ S

Date :23-05-2016

Chairman & Managing Director

Preetal P. Mepani
Company Secreatary

“Blagg : Mumbai
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Shridhar N. Pittie
Jayprakash M. Tiwari
Shefali V. Mirani

Directors

\
R. VIREN - 44901
& MANAGING DIRECTOR
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INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2016

Amountin¥
Ref;r -~ —— —
o.
L Revenue from operations 17 94,25,19,755
ll. Otherincome 18 5,03,25,995
lll. Total Revenue (1 +1I) 99,28,45,750
IV. Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 19 38,03,77,274
Changes in Inventories
(Finished goods work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade) 20 8,80,27,163
Employee benefit expense 21 5,84,21,251
Finance costs 22 16,655
Depreciation and amortization expense 4,74,63,504
Other expenses 23 37,11,91,023
Total expenses 94,54,96,870
V.  Profit before tax (lil - IV) 4,73,48,880
VI Tax Expense :
(1) Current tax 1,25,00,000
(2) Deferred tax (17,98,000)
VIl Profit for the year (V-Vi) 3,66,46,880
VIl Earnings per equity share :
Basic & Diluted 3.90
Weighted average number of Equity Shares 94,00,000
(face value of ¥ 10 each)
Significant Accounting Policies and the accompanying Notes
are an integral part of the Financial Statements 24
As per our attached report of even date.
For MAHENDRA N. SHAH & CO. Viren C. Mirani Pradip P. Madhaviji
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Shridhar N. Pittie
FRN105775W Jayprakash M. Tiwari
CA Chirag M. Shah Preetal P. Mepani Shefali V. Mirani
Partner Company Secreatary Directors

M. No.: F-45706
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 23-05-2016

Place : Mumbai
: 23-05-2016
For, GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.,,

. MiRAN! (DIN : 4
G DIRECTOR



INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2016

Note 1 Share Capital
As at 31" March, 2016
Number inT

Authorised

Equity Shares of T 10/- each 1,25,00,000 12,50,00,000
Issued '

Equity Shares of T 10/- each 94,00,000 9,40,00,000
Subscribed & Fully Paid up

Equity Shares of T 10/- each fully paid 94,00,000 9,40,00,000

Total 94,00,000 9,40,00,000

(a) Particulars of Share Holders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of Shareholder As at 31" March, 2016

MNo. of % of
Shares held| Holding

Olive Finance & Investment Pvi. Ltd. 18,74,599 19.94
Viren C. Mirani 11,07,846 11.79
Shefali V. Mirani 7.65,650 8.15
Suni! P. Mirani 6,56,140 6.98
Manorama N. Mirani 5,64,580 6.01
Divyaprabha C. Mirani 5,49,534 5.85

(b) Terms and Rights attached to Equity Shares:

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10/- each pershare.

Each Equity shareholderis entitled to one vote per share.
The company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees .

Note 2 Reserves & Surplus

Closing Balance

Total

As at
31" March, 2016
T
a. Capital Reserves 6,30,26,000
b. Securlties Premium Account 13,63,40,000
c. General Reserves
Opening Balance 85,31,88,723
{+) Transferred from statement of Profit and Loss 3,50,00,000
Closing Balance 88,81,88,723
d. Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss :
Opening balance 3,84,61,706
{-) Accumulated Dep. Adjusted -
{+) Deferred Tax asset on accumulated depreciation -
{+} Net Profit for the current year 3,66,46,880
{(-) Proposed Dividend 84,60,000 |-
{-) Dividend Distribution Tax 17,22,287 |-
(-) Transfer to Reserves 3,50,00,000 |-

2,99,26,299 |-

111,74,81,022 | 109,10,16,429
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INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2016
Note 3 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

As at
31" March, 2016
T
Opening Balance 7,94,32,460
Add/{Less) : Provided /{written back)} on Accumulated Dep. -
Add{(Less) : Pravided /(written back) during the year {17,98,000)
Total 7.76,34,460
Note 4 Other Long Term Liabilities
(a) Secunty Deposit 5,62,182
Total 5,62,182
Note 5 Long Term Provisions
{a)  Provision for employea benefits
Leave Encashment {unfunded) 1.58,84,628
(b} Others:
Pravisions for Tax & Disputed Matters 12,44,49 454
Total 14,03,34,082

Note 6 Other Current Liabilities

{a)  Advance from Customers 43,90,442
(b  Unpaid dividend 24,34,387
(c) Other Current Liabilities 99,87,580

Total 1,68,12,809

Note 7 Short Term Provisions

{a) Provision for employee benefits 14,78,654
{b) Others :

(i} Proposed Dividend ’ 84,60,000

{ii) Tax on Dividend 17,22,287

(iii) Provision for income tax & Others 7,87,05,000

Total 9,04,45,941
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NOTE TO THE'FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2016
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INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.
NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2016

Note 9 Non-Current Investments

Details of Non Current Investments (At Cost)
Subsidiary / Quoted / Party
I\Slg. Namae of the Body Corporate -éﬁ%%cnzﬁgg Shagos.)’olfjnits Unquoted . lz;iz ;ud Aﬂ;g;-mt
n" uﬁmc 31"_&\_22“ H1e
{1 {2) (3} {4) {6) {7 (8)
{2} | invastemant in Equity Shares
1] Tamiinadu Jaibharat Mills Ltd Others 50,000 Quated | Fully Paid 5,00,000
2 | Autolite (India) Ltd Qthers 100 Quoted | Fully Paid 9,000
3| K.V Cottam Gin. & Press. Co. Pyt Ltd Associates Unguoted | Fully Paid -
4 | Supreme Yam Spinnars Ltd Others Unquoted | Fuily Paid -
5| Shei Vigneswara Cotton Mills Limited (thers 6.000 Unquatad | Fuly Paig 60,000
6 | SCIL CapHal India Limited Associates Unguoted | Fully Paid
7 | SKM Engg. Products Export {1} Lid Others 10,000 Quoted { Fully Paid 1,00,000
8 | Ugam Solutions P.Ltd. Associates 10,000 Unquoted | Fully Paid| 1,70,00,000
Total 1,76,69,000
{in | Investmenis in Debentures/Bonds
1 | National Highway Authorities of India Qthars 12,362 Quoted | Fully Paid| 1,23,62,000
Bonds {Tax Free)
Cholarnandalam Irvesament & Finance Co. Ltd Qthers 20 Quated { Fully Paid
NHAI Bonds(Benefit U/S 54 EC) Others 500 Quoted | Fully Paid
NHAI Bends (Tax Frea) Others 851 Quotad | Fully Paid
Tatal
{c}| Investments in Mutual Funds
1 | Kotak India Growth Fund Others T.270 Unguoted | Fully Paid
2 | Kotak India Growth Fund - 11 Others 100 Unquoted | Fully Paid
Total
{d)} Other non-current investmants
1 | Matlonal Savings Certlficate Others Unguoted 1 Fully Paid 6,000
Tatat 5,000 [
Grand Total 6,78,66,035 |-
Note 9 Non-Current Investments
As at
31" March, 2016
Investments {Non Trade)
[a}  Investment in Equity Shares 1,76,69,000
(b}  Investment in debentures or bonds 3,59,33,000
{(c} Investment in Mutual Funds 1,42,58,035
{d) Other non-current investment - National Savings Cerlificate 6,000
Total 6,78,66,035
Aggregate amaunt of quoted investments (Market Value of ¥ 3,62,22,070)
(Previous Year ¥ 2,77,43,180} 3,65,42,000
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments at cost 3,13,24,035

69



INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2016

Note 10 Long Term Loans and Advances

Unsecured, considered good

(a) Security Deposits 36,62,311
{b) Other Loans & Advances 13,94,79,232
Total 14,31,41,543
Note 11 Other Non Current Assets
Sundry Advances for Capital Goods 22,44,262
Total 22.44,262
Note 12 Inventories
{Valued at cost or net realisabla value whichever is lower)
{a) Raw Materials 6,50,41,221
{b} Work-in-progress 6,34,33,126
{c} Finished goods 8,26,71,383
{d} Stores and spares and components 2,79,71,515
{e) Loose Toals 2,53,567
Total 23,93,70,812
Note 13 Trade Receivables {Unsecured)
As at

31" March, 201

(a} Qutstanding for a period exceeding' six months
from the date they are due for payment {considered good}

{b} Others {considered good}

Total

5,76,309

§,03,85,612

6,09,61,921

Note 14 Cash and Cash Equivaients

Aa at 31" March, 2016

(a) Cash on hand
(b} Balances with banks
(i} fn Current Accounts
{(ii} Earmarked Balances
(unpaid dividend accounts)
(iii) In Deposit Accounts :
{a) Margin money Deposit
{b) Bank deposits with more than
12 months maturity

37,62,30,516

1,67,07,893

1,97,570

24,34,387}37,86,64,90

1,00,00,000] 2,67,07,893

Total 40,55,70,26
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Note 15 Short Term Loans and Advances

As at
31" March, 2016
Unsecured, considered good
{a) Loans and advances to related parties 2,09,99,999
{b) Staif Loans & Advances 1,77,750
© Other Loans and Advances 15,69,94,356
Total 17,81,72,105
Note 16 Other Current Assets
Interest Recaivable 1,18,50,708
Total 1,18,50,708
Note 17 Revenue From Operations X
2015-2016
{a}  Sale of products
Gross Sales 92,49,98,204
Lass;
Excise duty 1,31,67,430
Nat Salas 91,18,30,774
Details of finished goods sold :
Ossein 5,64,98,020
Gelatine 69,09,20,682
Di-calcium Phosphate 16,44,12,072
Total 91,18,30,774
(b)  Other Operating Revenus
(i} Miscellansous Sales 98,76,485
(i} Expart Incentives 1,03,07,729
{iii) Service Tax Refund 7,63, 797
{iv) HCL Lifting charges ‘ 97,40,970
Total 3,06,88,981
Grand Total 84,25,19,755
Note 18 Other Income
Interest Incomea 1,25,22,011
Dividend Income 1,56,84,005
Profit on sales of investments 2,19,46,373
Profit on sales of assets -
Miscellanceous Income 1,73,606
Total 5,03,25,995
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INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.
NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2016

Note 19 Raw Materials Consumed

2015-2016
T T ;
Opaning Stock 2,73,46,367}
Add: Purchase during the year
i} Crushed Bones 40,01,70,683
i) Lime 1,69,93,271
iit) Hydrochloric Acid 9,08,174| 41,80,72,128
44,54,18,495|
Less: Closing Stock 6,50,41,221|
Consumption of materials 38,03,77,27
which includes Consumption of
i} Crushed Bones 36,23,64,58
ii} Lime 1,70,78,690
i) Hydrachloric Acid 9,34,001
Note 20 Changes in Inventories
2015-2016
L4 T
Closing Stock
Finished 8,26,71,383
Work in Process 6,34,33,126 |14,61,04,509
Less:
Opening Stock
Finished 15,35,82,610
Work in Process 8,05,49,062 |123,41,31,672
(Increase)/Decrease 8,80,27,163
Note 21 Employee Benefit Expenses
2015-2016
T
Salary, Wages & Bonus 5,32,25,365
Staff Welfare Expenses 6,70,290
Contribution to Provident Fund 20,15,022
Contribution to ES1 Scheme 1,74,193
Gratuity - Contribution to LIC Scheme 23,36,381
Total 5,84,21,251




INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2016
Note 22 Finance Cost

2015-2016
L4
Interest expenses 16,655
Total 16,655
Note 23 Other Expenses
2015-2016 !
¥ 2
Packing Materials Consumed 61,18,869
Stores, Spares & Tools Consumed 3,37,63,508
Power & Fusel 13,59,69,529
Labour Charges 2,96,10,217
CETP, Water and Effluent Treatment Charges 3,00,03,848
Repairs
Machinery 1,08,04,317
Building 1.42,15,314
Others 15,35.338 | 2,65,54,969
Export Expenses 1,32,44,829
Freight and Cartage 69,27,683
Insurance 50,63,218
Rent, Rates & Taxes 19,17,478
Postage and Telephone 18,37,575
Stationery & Printing 9,18,359
Advertisement & Sales Promotion Expenses 27,53,015
Commission and Discount on Safes 1,44,15,918
Legal & professional fees 1,73,34,613
Diractors’ Sitting Fees 2,26,970
‘Donation 91,500
CSR Eepenses 18,00,000
Travefling Expenses 1,64,23,800
General Expenses 1,38,35,302
Sales Tax 1,23,79,823
Total 37,11,91,023
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INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2016.

Note 24
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES :

1

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8

Basls of Accounting :

The Financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention as a going concemn and on accrual
basis in accordance with the generally acoepted accounting principles, the Accounting Standards Issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (The Act).

Use of Estimates :

The presentation of Financial Statements require estimates and disclosure of contingent liebilities assumptions
to be made that affect the reported emount of Assets and Liabilities on the date of the financial statements and
the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results
and estimates are recognized in the peried in which the results are known/materialized.

Fixed Assets:

Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction, net of cenvat credit, including incidental expenses
related to ecquisition and installation and financing costs tili the commencement of commercial production and
adjustments arising from exchange rate variation relating to borrowings attributable to fixed assets, less
accumilated depreciation.

Free hold land is stated atcost
Depreciation :

1. (a) The Company's Plant at Vapiis Continuous Process Plant, The Company has provided depreciation in
respect of Plant and Machinery and Equipments at Vapi Plant on the basis of technical valuetion carried
outon useful life determined by Government approved registered Valuer.

(b} Pursuanttothe enactment of Companies Act 2013, the company has applied the estimated useful lives
as specified in Scheduls Il in respect of assets other than Plant and Machineries, Equipments at Vapi
Plant. Accordingly, the unamortised carrying value is being depreciated / amortised over the revisad/
remaining useful life of particular assets.

inventories:
tems of inventories ara valued on the FIFO/Specific Weighted Average Cost and on the basis given below :

a) Stores and Spares, Packing At cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower
Materials, Fuel & Locse tools

by RawMaterials - Atcostornet realizabla value, whichever is lower

c) Work-in-Process At costornetrealizable value, whicheveris lower

d) Finished Goods - Atcostornet realizable value, whichevaris lower

Costs of inventories comprise of all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incumred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Borrowing Costs :

Bormrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part
of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready
forintended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.,

Investments :

Long Tern Investments are caried at cost less provision for permanent diminution, if any, in value of such
investments.

Employees Benefits :

Short term employes benefits (which are payable within 12 months after the end of the pericd in which the
employees render service) are measured at cost.

Lonig term employee benefits (which are payable after the end of 12 months from the end of the period in which
the employees render service) and post employment benefits (benefits which are payable after completion of
employment) are measured on a discounted basis by the Projected Unit Credit Methed on the basis of Actuarial
Valuation.
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9}

10}

".

12)

13)

Contribution to provident fund a defined contribution plan is mada in accordance with the statute.

The cost of praviding leave encashment and gratuity defined benefit plans are determind using Projected Unit
Credit Method on the basis of Actuarial valuation.

Impaiment of Assets :

The company on an Annual basis makes an assessment of any indicator that mey lead to impaimment of Assets. If
any such indicetion exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the assets. If such recoverable
amount is less than the carrying amount, then the carrying amount is reduced to its recoversble amount by
creating the difference as Impairment [oss & is charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Excise duty and Cenvat Credit:

Excise Duty payable on finished goods is accounted for on clearanca of goods. Cenvat credit on Capital goods
and Inputs is accounted for on the date of actual receipt of the same, respectively.

Foreign Currency Transactions ;

{a} Initial recognition:

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign cumrency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency of the date of the
transaction.

{b} Conversion:

Foreign cumrency monetary items are reported using the closing rete. Non-monatary tems which are
camied in tarms of historlcal cost denominated in a forelgn currency are reported using the exchange rate of
the date of the transaction; and non-monstary items which ara camied of fair velue or other simllar valuation
denominated in a forelgn currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values
were determined.

{c} Exchange differences:

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company's monetary
items of retes different from those of which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in
previous financiel statomeants, are recognized as income or as axpansas in the ysar in which they erisa.

(d) Forward Exchange Contracts notintended fortrading:

The premium or discount arising of the inception of forward exchange contracts is amortized as expense or
income over the life of the contract. Exchangs differencas on such contracts ara recognized in the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which the exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arising on
cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contract is recognized as income or as expense forthe year.

Reavenue Recognltion;

Incoma and Expenditure are recognized and accounted on Accrual Basis. Revenua from Sale of goods is
recognizad on delivery of the goods, when all significant contractual obligations have been satisfied, the property
in the goods is transferred for a price, significant risks and rewards of ownarship are fransferred to customers and
no effective ownership is retained. However;

(a} Revenue inrespect of insurance/other claims etc., is recognized only when it is reasonably cartain that the
ultimate collection will ba made.

{b} Exportincentives in respectof exports made underthe MEIS Scheme is being accounted for on transfer,

{(c} interestincome is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the applicable rata of interest.

SegmentAccounting :

The Company deals in only one product segment i.e. Chemicel Products and hence requirements of AS-17
“Segment Reporting” issued by ICAl are not appficable.
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14)

15)

18)

17)

Earnings Per Share:

The eamings considered in ascertaining the Company’s EPS comprises of the net profit after tax (and includes
the post tax effect of any extra ordinary item). The number of shares used in computing Basic EPS is the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Taxation:
{a) DirectTaxes:

Tax expense for the year, comprising of Currant Tax and Deferred Tax is included in determining the net
profit for the year.

Apravision is made for the current tax based on tax liability computed in accordance with relevant {ax rates
and tex laws. A pravision is made for deferred tax for ali timing differences arising betwsan taxable income
and accounting income at currently enacted tax rates.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is reasonable certainty that they will be realized and are
reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective camrying values at each Balance Sheet date.

(b} IndirectTaxes:
The liabilities are provided or considered as contingent depending upon the merit of each case andfor
receiving the actual demand from the department.

Cash Flow Statement :

The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the “indirect method” set out in Accounting Standard 3 on “Cash Flow
Statement” and presents the cash flows by operating, Investing and financing activities ofthe Company.

Cash and Cash Equivalents presented in the Cash Flow Statement consist of cash on hand and demand
deposits with banks.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities :

A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is prabable
that an outflow of rescurces will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be
made. A contingent liability is disclosed when the company has a possible or prasent obligation where it is not-
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle it. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor
disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Note 25

1.

3.

4.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped, re-amanged, re-casted wherever necessary to make them
comparable with those of the current year.

Surplus of 10,79,966/- (Previous year surplus of T 2,58,982/-) & surplus of T 55,983/~ (Previous year surplus of
¥17,229/-) being the impact of foreign exchange fluctuation has been included in the turmover and purchase of
Stores, Spares & Machinery respectively.

There are no Micro and Small Enterprise, to whom company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45
days as at 31* March, 2016, This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Smalf and Medium
Enterprise Development Act (MSMED Act), 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been
indentified on the basis of information available with the company.

Contingentliabillities : T
i}  BankGuaranteesissued

2015-2016 2014-2015

GSPC 26,79,093 1,25,66,593

Dakshin Gujarat Vij Company 1,29,17,308 1,29,17,308

1,55,96,401 2,54,83,901
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ii) Inraspect of claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

2015-20186 2014-2015
Excisae Duty 8,114,620 8,14,620
Service Tax 37,52,970 38,00,750
45,67,590 44 15,370

i) The Bonus Amsndment Act 2015 was made effective from 01.04.2014. However jurisdictional
Honorable Gujarat High Court has given stay and the company has therefore not provided liability in
respect of Bonus for the Ade. year 2014-15 of T 5,34,565/- in the books.

5{a) Deflned Benefit Planin respect of Gratulty as per Actuarial vaiuations on 31* March, 2016 .
L4

1. Assumption 31-03-20186 31-03-2015
Rate of Interest 8.00% 8.00%
Salary Growth 4.00 % 4.00%

2. Changes In present value of Obligation as on 31/03/2018 31/03/2015
Present Value of obligation as at beginning of year  2,03,84,183 1,68,18,956
Interest cost 16,30,733 13,29,586
Current Service Cost 10,50,300 7,83,303
Benefits paid (10,98,923) (19,18,965)
Actuarlal (gain¥loss on obflgations 12,33,293 34,23,207
FPresent value of obligations as at end of year 2,31,99,568 2,02,30,097

3. Changes In the fair value of plan assets as on 31/03/2018 31032015
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 1,94,90,370 1,82,75415
Expected retum on plan assets 18,10,885 16,81,379
Contributions 2792175 13,410,188
Benefits paid ' (10,08,823) (19,18,965)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of year 2,29,94,507 1,93,50,017

4, Falr value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of ysar 1,94,80,370 1,82,75,415
Actual retumn on plan assets 18,10,885 16,81,379
Contributions 27.92,175 13,10,188
Benefits paid (10,98,923) (19,16,965)
Fair vaiue of plan assets at the end of yeer 2,29,84 507 1,83,50,017
Funded status { 2,05,060) {8,89,080)

5.  Actuarlal GalnfLoss recognized

Actuartal {gain}loss on obligation (12,33,293) {34,23,207)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 12,33,203 34,23,207
Actuarial (gain)¥loss recognized in the year 12,33,203 34,23,207

6. The amounts to be recognized in the Balance Sheet and
Statoments of Profit And Loss

Present value of obligations as at the end of year 2,31,99,568 2,02,38,097
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 2,20,94,508 1,93,50,017
Funded status {2,05,060) (8,89,080}
Net Asset(Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet (2,05,050) (8,88,080)
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5(b)

6.

8(a).

8(b).

8(c).

10.

7. Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss

Current service cost 40,50,300 7,983,303
Interest cost 16,30,733 13,29,586
Expected return on plan assets {18,10,885) (16,81,379)
Net Actuarial (gain)/Loss recognized in the year 12,33,293 34,23,207
Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss 21,03,441 38,584,727

tn respect of liability of leave encashment up to 31.03.2016 the company has obtained actuarial valuation and
has provided T 42,19,325/-in the books.

In respect of appeal filed by the company in Income Tax Appellate Tribunal regarding the treatment of receipt of
Capital Compensation of ¥ 1253.00 lacs which the company has claimed as exempt has been decided in favour
of the Revenue treating the receipt as “Business Income”, However, the company has already paid the entire tax
of T 384.00 lacs in the respective year. The company has preferred appeal in Gujarat High Court against the
impugned order of the ITAT. The company has been legally advised that it has a good case in appeal and hence
no pravision thereof has been madein the accounts.

in terms of Accounting Standard 28 — Impafrment of Assets issued by ICAI, the management has reviewed its
Fixed Assets and arrived at the conclusion that Impairment Loss which is difference between the carrying
amount and recoverable value of Assels, was not material and hence no provision is required to be made.

During the year the company has received VAT assessment orders for A/c. years 2010-2011 & 2011-2012 and
the department has reduced input VAT tax Credit on fuels & other claims of the company of ¥ 56,30,382/- which
has resulted into lower VAT refund and the same Short Creditis included in Sales Tax expenses forthe year.

General expenses includes Credit of ¥ 67,97,066/- arising on account of effect of difference of Excise Duty on
opening and closing stack of finished goods.

In respect of some of the Equipments which were not working efficientty and were also inoperative, the company
has cbtained technical report from the Govt. approved valuer and on the basis of the same has applied useful life
asworked out by the Valuer and provided depreciation on the same.

Eamings per share

Year Ended Year Ended

31-03-2016 31-03-2015

Net profit attributable to Sharesholders (T lacs) 366.47 621.89
Weighted average number of Equity Shares 9400000 9400000
Basic eamings per share of ¥ 10/- each 3.900 6.620

The company does not have any outstanding dilutive potential equity shares, consequently the basic and
diluted eaming per share of the company remain the same.

Disclosure in respect of related parties pursuant to Accounting Standard 18;
A. List of Related parties :
1) Parties where control exists : -
2) Otherparties with whom company entered znto transactions during the year
i JointVentures : -
i)  Associates
1) Khimji Visram & Sons {Guj} Pvt. Ltd
2) Olive Finance & InvestmentP. Lid.
3) Khimji Visram & Sens {Partnership Firm)
3} Key Management Personnel and Enterprises having common Key Management Personnel or
their Relatives
Key Management Personnel :
Mr. Viren C, Mirani - Chairman & Managing Director

Relatives of Key Management Personnel :
Mr. Nayan C. Mirani, brother of Mr. Viren C. Mirani
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B. During tha year following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of

business and at Arms Langth.

T
Sr. Nature of Transaction Associates Key Enterprises/Helatives
No. Managerial of Key Management
Personnel Personnel
1. Managerial Retnuneration — 2,05,81,414 —
2. Loans Given —_— —— —
3. Interest Received — — 15,79,315
4, RAsimbursement of Expenses —_ - 3,562,815
C. Outstandingbalances as on 31.03.2016 ¢
Sr. Nature of Transaction Associates Key Enterprises/Relatives
No. Managerial of Key Management
Parsonneal Personnel
1 Loans given - - 2,10,00,000
() {-) (2,24,14,725)
2. Investmentin Shares 1,70,00,000 - -
(8,19,84,700) (-} (=)
Figures of previous years ara shown in brackets.
11. General Exponses Include T
Auditor’s Remuneration (Excluding Service Tax) 2015-2016 2014-2015
a) Audit Fees 1,25,000 3,25,000
b) For Tax Audit 75,000 75,000
¢} Out of pocket expenses 53,640 57,453
d) For other Capacity 32,190 1,43,000
4,85,740 6.00,453

12, The company has entered into forward exchange contracts / options which are not intended for trading or
speculative purposes, but for hedge purposes to establish the amount of reporting currency required or
available at the settlement date of certain payables and receivables.

a} Forward Contracts

Raceivables
31-03-2016
Currency Quantity Y lacs
usD NIL NIL
EURO NIL NIL
Payable
31-03-2016
Currency Quantity Y lacs
UsD NIL NIL

79




INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2016.

b) Un hedged Foreign Currency Exposures at Balance Sheet date :
Receivables
31-03-2016
Currency Quantity ¥ lacs
ush 5,09,050 336.33
EURO NIL NIL
13.  Vatue of Imported and Indigenous Stores Consumed : T
2015-2016 2014-2015
i) Imported 8,12,060 30,895,981
ii) Indigenous 3,29,51,448 3,81,16,531
3,37,63,508 41212512
14. Value of Imports calculated on C.L.F. Basis in respect of : 4
2015-2016 2014-2015
i) Components - Spare parls 21,56,828 24,386,504
i) Capital Goods 28,96,959 Nil
15 Expenditure of Foreign Currency on account of : T
a) Revenue Expenditure
1) Travelling 97,74 111 94,62,254
ii} Subscription 3,98,905 4,34,690
iii} Commission 1,29,94,422 1,30,62,130
v}  Technician Fees 6,24,651 Nil
16. Eaming in Foreign Exchange
Export of goods (FOB) as per B/l 61,88,51,355 79,86,42,452
17.  The amount remitted during the year in Foreign Currency
Payment of Dividend :
Dividend Paid : Nil Nil
No. of non-resident shareholders - -
Year to which it relate - -
As per our attached report of even date.
For MAHENDRA N. SHAH & CO. Viren C. Mirani Pradip P. Madhaviji
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director Shrighar N. Pittie
FRN105775W Jayprakash M. Tiwan
CA Chirag M. Shah Preetal P. Mepani Shefali V. Mirani
Partner Company Secreatary Directors
M. No.: F-45706
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Mumbai
Date : 23-05-2016 Date : 23-05-2016

80



CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2016

INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

Tlacs

2015-16
A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Profit bafore tax as per Satement of Profit & Loss 473.48
Adjustments :
Depreciation 47463
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 60.60
Investment \ncome {282.06)
interest Paid 0.16
Net Gain on Sale of Investmenis {219.46) 33.87
Operating Profit bafore working capital 507.35
Adjusted for -
1) Trade & other Receivables {380.22}
i} Stock 494.92
iii) Trade Payable (18.23} 06.48
Cash generated from cperations 603.83
Interest Paid {0.16)
Direct Tax Paid (223.23) {223.39
380.44
Foreign Exchange effecls =
Net Cash from Operating Activities 380.44
B} CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Fixed Assets {326.11)
Fareign exchange effect on fixed assets -
Sale of Fixed Assets 45.T1
Purchase of I[nvestments (85.71)
Sale of Investments §93.93
Interest Income 96.61
Dividend Income 156.84
Net Cash used in Investing Activities 781.27
C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIWVITIES
Borrowing of Funds -
Repayment of borrowings -
Proceeds from Issue of shares -
Fareign Exchange Effects on L.T. Borrowings -
Dividend paid including distribution tax {169.71)
Nat Cash from Financing Activifies 169.71)
Net Incroase in Cash & Gash Equivalents {a+h+c) 992.00
Opening Belance of Cash & Cash equivalents 3,063.70
Closing Balance of Cash & Cash equivalents 4,055.70
Net Increase/{Docrease} in Cash & Cash Equivalents 992.00

As per our attached report of even date.

For MAHENDRA N, SHAH & CO.
Charterad Accountants

FRN105775W

CA. Chirag M. Shah
Partner

M. No.: F-45706

Place : Ahmedabad

Date

Viren C. Mirani
Chairman & Managing Director

Preetal P. Mepani
Company Secreatary

Place : Mumbai
: 23-05-2016 Date : 23-05-2016
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INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

703/704, “Shilp', C.G. Road, Navrangpura,
Ahmedabad - 380309 Gujarat

Dear Shareholder, 23 May, 2016

Subject : MCA's Green Inltiative for Paperless Communications

Tha Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Governmant of India {MCA) has, vide Circular No. 18/2011 dated 29" April, 2011, undertaken a
‘Green initiative in Corporate Governance' allowing companies to send the Annual Report and other documents to their shareholders
alectronically.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India has, vide Circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/7/2011 directed listed companies to supply soft
copies of Annual Reports to all those shareholders who have registered their e-mail addresses for the purpose.

Cur company appreciates the initiative taken by MCA, as it believes strongly in & Greener Environment. This initiative also helps in
prompt receipt of communicalion, apart from helping avoid losses/delays in postal transit.

Woe therefore propose to send documents, such as the Notice of the Annual General Meeting, Annual Report, hali-yearly
gommunications etc. henceforth to shareholders in Electronic Form at the e-mail address provided by them and made available to us
by the depositories from time to time. As per our records, your e-mail address is not registered with your Depos#tory Participant/ Share
Transfer Agent.

In case you wish to receive all the above communications in electronic form; and
A. hold your shares in dematerialized form, kindly register your e-mail address with your Depository Participant at the eartiest, or

B hold your shares in physical form, kindly register your e-mail addrass with our Share Transfor Agent at the following address at

the earfiest;

Reqistrar & Share Transfer Agent :

LINK INTIME INDIA PVT. LTD.

G-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Gompound,

L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup (W), Mumbai - 400 078.

Tel.: (022) 2594 6970 / 2594 6960 Fax : {022) 2594 6969

Email : ANTHELPDESK @ LINKINTIME.CO.IN (Lower Case)
Youmay use the format given below for registering your e-mail address with your Depository Participant/ Link Intime India P, Ltd.
We wish to inform you that in addition to getting the documnents through your registered e-mail, you can also have access to the
documents through our company website, www.indiagelatine.com The document will also be available to you for inspection at the
Reygistered Office of the company during office hours.

We are sure you would appreciate the “Green Initiative” taken by MCA, just as it is being welcomed by companies like us. Needless to
say, you will be, as a member of the company, entitled to be furmnished with a copy of the above mentioned documents as required
underthe pravisions of the Companies Act, 2013, free of cost, upon receipt of a reguisition from you any time during the year.

We solicit your whole-hearted co-operation in helping the Company implement the e-govemance initiatives of the Govermment in the
interest of environment, which is the nead of the hour today.

This communication may be ignored, if your e-mail address is already registered with your Depository Participant/ Link Intime India
P, Lid.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

ForINDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

Viren C.Mirani

Chairman & Managing Cirector
X X X
E-COMMUNICATION REGISTRATION FORM INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.
{In terms of circulars dated 21.04.2011 & 29.04.2011 703/704, "Shilp', C.G. Road,
Issued by the Ministry of Corporate Afairs} Navrangpura,

Ahmedapad — 380009 Gujarat
Folio No./DP D & Client 1D No.

Name of 1" Registered holder
Name of Joint hoider(s)

E-mail (tobe registered})

Please register my above e-mail in your records for receiving communication in electronic form from company/fies of which l/we
am/are shareholder(s).

Date : Signature

(First holder}
Note : Shareholder{s} are requested to keep the Company informed of change, if any, in the e-mail address.
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B e s e sreeabeceeaaooooicoimanrossssmemses TEARHERE st --ve--en--sssmosoesnsS-osssuerosesssssroeennSooTTmsssanEnToet

FORM NO. MGT - 11
(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companles Act, 2013 and rule 13(3)
of the Companies {(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

g INDIA GELATINE & CHEMICALS LTD.

Registered Office : 703/704, 'Shilp', 7th Floor, Near Municipal Market, Sheth C.G. Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 380 009
Tel: +§1-075-26465514 Fax : +91-79-26465565 Website : www.indiagelatine.com
Invastors Relations e-mail Id:investor@indiagelatine.com Corporate Indentity Number {CIN): L99999GJ1973PLC002260

PROXY FORM
Name of the Members(s): Folio No./Client Id:
Registered Address CP Id:
E-mail Id:
Ifit¥e, being the Member{s) of the above named Campany, halding Shares, hereby appoint
1 Name Address
Email iD Signature or failing him
2 Name Address
Email iD Signature or failing him
3 Name . Address
Email Ik Signature

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll} far mefus on my/aur behalf at the 44" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on
Tuesday, 27" September, 2016 at 11.00 a.m. at the GICEA, Nirman Bhavan, (Gajjar Hall}, Nr. Law Gardan, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad -
380006 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below :

Reasolution No.
1. 2. a 4.
a. 6. 7.
Signed this day of 2016
Revenue
Signature of Shareholder Stamp

Signaturo of Proxy holder{s)

Nota : This form of proxy in ordar to ba affective should ke duly campleted and depositad at the Registered Office
of the Company, not lass than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.
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